Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai

Lleoliad: | gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 Catherine Hunt
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 22 Mai 2024 Clerc y Pwyllgor
Amser: 09.30 0300 200 6565

SeneddTai@senedd.cymru

(Rhag-gyfarfod (09.15 - 09.30)

Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau
(09.30)

Cyflenwad tai cymdeithasol - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1

(09.30 - 10.45) (Tudalennau 1 - 64)
Edward Shepherd, Uwch Ddarlithydd mewn Cynllunio a Datblygu

Ken Gibb, Cyfarwyddwr Canolfan Gydweithredol y DU ar gyfer Tystiolaeth Tai
Toby Lloyd, Ymgynghorydd Annibynnol

Nicholas Falk, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol The Urbed Trust

(Egwyl 10.45 - 11.00)

Cyflenwad tai cymdeithasol - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 2

(11.00 - 12.00) (Tudalennau 65 - 98)
Darren Baxter, Prif Gynghorydd Polisi - Tai a Thir, Sefydliad Joseph Rowntree
Wendy Dearden, Uwch Swyddog Polisi a Ymchwil, Sefydliad Bevan

Robin White, Pennaeth Ymgyrchoedd, Shelter Cymru

Papurau i'w nodi
(Tudalen 99)

"(’% Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio
mewn perthynas ag Amrywiaeth mewn Llywodraeth Leol
(Tudalennau 100 - 101)
Llythyr gan Carolyn Thomas AS mewn perthynas a'r sector rhentu preifat
(Tudalen 102)
Llythyr gan y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith mewn
perthynas a chyflenwad tai cymdeithasol
(Tudalennau 103 - 104)
Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio
mewn perthynas a'r Bil Rhentwyr (Diwygio)
(Tudalen 105)
Llythyr gan y Welsh Cladiators mewn perthynas a diogelwch adeiladau
(Tudalennau 106 - 108)
Llythyr gan y Pwyllgor Cyllid mewn perthynas a'r gyllideb ddrafft 2025-26
Llywodraeth Cymru
(Tudalennau 109 -111)
Llythyr at y Llywydd gan y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r
Cyfansoddiad mewn perthynas & Memoranda Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol
Atodol (Memorandwm Rhif 3 a Memorandwm Rhif 4) ar y Bil Diwygio Cyfraith
Lesddaliad a Rhydd-ddaliad
(Tudalen 112)
Llythyr at y Prif Weinidog gan y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r
Cyfansoddiad mewn perthynas a'r cytundeb rhyngwladol rhwng y DU a
Denmarc
(Tudalennau 113 - 114)

Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod
(12.00)

(Preifat)



6 Cyflenwad tai cymdeithasol - Trafod y dystiolaeth
(12.00 - 12.15)

7 Y Bil Cyllid Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) - Trefn y broses ystyried yng

Nghyfnod 2
(12.15 -12.20) (Tudalennau 115 - 119)

8 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm

Rhif 4) ar y Bil Diwygio Cyfraith Lesddaliadau a Rhydd-ddaliadau
(12.20 - 12.30) (Tudalennau 120 - 127)



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42 E |te m 2

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1



Papur 1/ Paper 1

Senedd Cymru
Local Government and Housing Committee

Consultation: Inquiry into Social Housing Supply
Written Evidence: April 2024

Professor Kenneth Gibb

Director, UK Collaborative Centre for Housing Evidence (CaCHE)
Email: Ken.Gibb@Glasgow.ac.uk

&

Dr Bob Smith

Knowledge Exchange Broker (Wales), CaCHE
Email: Smithr2@cf.ac.uk

April 2024

Introduction

Thank you for the opportunity to submit written evidence to the Committee’s Inquiry
into Social Housing Supply.

The UK Collaborative Centre for Housing Evidence (CaCHE) was established in
August 2017. It is a consortium of eight partners in higher education and non-
academic institutions, led by the University of Glasgow and funded by the Economic
and Social Research Council (ESRC) and the Arts and Humanities Research Council
(AHRC). Our aim is to advance knowledge and understanding in the UK housing
sector and promote evidence-based policy and practice. Details of what we do, our
current research themes and our library of publications are all available on our
website:

https://housingevidence.ac.uk/

In late 2018 CaCHE published a series of Papers on Social Housing in Scotland,
Northern Ireland and Wales as well as papers on social housing governance and the
funding of new social and affordable housing. In April 2021 CaCHE also published
Housing in Wales: Evidence for Government 2021-2026. Drawing on CaCHE
research this identified 12 key priorities under 6 themes, of which the first was the
need for increased investment in the supply of additional affordable (and particularly
social) housing. A sister paper on Housing in Scotland was published at the same
time. All these papers are available from the CaCHE website. Current research on

Tudalen y pecyn 32


mailto:Ken.Gibb@Glasgow.ac.uk
mailto:Smithr2@cf.ac.uk
https://housingevidence.ac.uk/

possible responses to the current challenges facing the Scottish affordable housing
supply programme (funded by the Joseph Rowntree Foundation) has been
interwoven into this evidence where relevant (also see the annex to this evidence on
background to the Scottish programme).

The Social Housing Sector in Context

Social housing in the UK has been transformed over the last half century. There has
been a significant absolute and proportionate decline in the scale of the sector
(where additions to the stock have been more than offset by disposals, particularly
through the Right-To-Buy — RTB?). At the same time the profile of the sector, in terms
of both tenants and landlords has changed, with not-for-profit housing associations
(Registered Social landlords — RSLs) becoming the main providers of social housing.
However, in many localities local councils remain important providers of social
housing (11 out of 22 local councils in Wales still have a landlord function) and local
authorities are building again, often using relatively new financial models and
different types of delivery vehicles. Since devolution in 1999 housing policy in Wales
has, in a number of respects, diverged from other parts of the UK (and particularly
England) and specific policies and programmes have been pursued in respect of
social and affordable housing, including the ending of RTB.

The latest published data from statswales suggests that in March 2022 there were
234,000 local authority and housing association (RSL) owned homes in Wales. This
is 15.9% of the total housing stock, with almost 10% in housing association
ownership. In March 2001, there were 242,900 social homes in Wales (19% of the
Welsh housing stock, with almost 15% in local authority ownership). So over more
than twenty years, whilst the total housing stock has increased by more than 15%,
the Welsh social housing stock has declined both proportionately and absolutely.

In the light of these changes and the overall long-term decline in the social housing
sector across the UK, numerous independent studies have argued for an increase in
the delivery of additional social and affordable housing. Social housing is seen as the
most affordable form of housing (a broader concept, including some forms of
relatively low-cost home ownership), although there are overlaps between social and
affordable housing. In this written evidence it is not possible to synthesise the wealth
of recent research, but we would refer Committee to the report on Wales published 5
years ago, the Independent Review of Affordable Housing Supply (Welsh
Government, 2019). We also note that the new First Minister in his recent leadership
manifesto indicated his intention to establish a Task Group on this issue which we
welcome.

The supply of social housing in Wales as elsewhere, is an important, and pressing
issue. However, it is important that is not viewed in isolation. It is a complex problem
and one that we believe requires a whole system approach to understand the

" The abolition of new build RTB in Scotland 7 years in advance of total abolition was critical to restarting
council house building.

Tudalenzy pecyn 33



structures, relationships, and potential points of leverage, where policy and practice
interventions can deliver effective change.

Social Housing Needs and Supply in Wales: Recent Trends

We note that the Committee’s terms of reference include examining the progress
towards meeting the Welsh Government target of 20,000 low carbon homes for rent
over the period 2021-2026 and the extent to which current and projected levels of
social housebuilding are likely to meet housing need.

In terms of housing need, Welsh Government estimates published in August 2020,
based on 2019 household projections, estimated that, under the central estimate the
need for additional affordable housing, was a need for an additional 3,500 homes
p.a. over the five years from 2019-20 to 2023-24. Other evidence has suggested
slightly higher figures for Wales (e.g. Bramley, 2018). Of course, the estimated
additional annual need may have increased since the last official assessment, given
affordability in the market sector has probably worsened. There is also a wealth of
data in Wales on aspects of housing need, for example homelessness data,
information about households on local housing registers and evidence from Local
Housing Market Assessments (LHMAs). We simply note that any housing supply
targets should be informed by the collection and analysis of robust data to inform up-
to-date estimates of housing need.

The latest Welsh Government Affordable Housing Provision statistics (published
November 2023) indicate that 3,212 additional affordable homes were provided
across Wales in 2022-23. This is a marked increase on 2021-22. Over the two-year
period this is a total of 5,775 additional affordable homes, against the 20,000 target.
However, overall, the number of additional affordable homes delivered over the last
two years has not returned to the levels pre Covid-19.

The 2022-23 figures include 2,252 additional homes provided by housing
associations (70% - including a relatively small provision of shared ownership), 20%
by local authorities, and the remainder by other (private sector) providers. The
majority was social rented housing, with a relatively minor provision of housing let at
intermediate rents.

The evidence from the most recent analysis of affordable housing provision in Wales
has shown a growth in the scale of delivery over the last decade and the number of
additional affordable homes provided in 2022-23 was the second highest in the last
15 years (the number of affordable homes delivered in 2020-21 was a little higher).

Statswales also publish data on annual new housing starts and completions on a
quarterly/annual basis, disaggregated by tenure. Looking at the two years 2021-22 to
2022-23 over 80% of more than 11,000 new dwellings completed were through
private enterprise, with housing associations completing less than 2,000 new
dwellings and local authorities under 300 new dwellings.

Tudalen y pecyn 34



New build is only part of the provision of additional affordable/social housing, with
acquisitions and conversions also contributing. Welsh Government have introduced
the Transitional Accommodation Capital Programme (TACP), providing grant funding
to housing associations and local authorities for the acquisition/development of
existing properties (including non-residential properties). This offers opportunities for
increasing and speeding up delivery of additional social housing. Whilst it will be
critical to ensure acquisitions/conversions do not compromise on quality, this sort of
programme offers opportunities to increase social/affordable supply more quickly.
However, currently, overall rates of additional social housing provision in Wales since
2021 suggest that it will be very challenging to meet the 20,000 target by 2026.

Challenges Faced by Social Landlords in Increasing Housing
Supply

In this section, we highlight some of the challenges we see facing social landlords in
Wales, which we develop a little more fully in subsequent sections of this paper?. We
believe these challenges include:

e Securing the necessary levels of investment (public and private) for increasing
the provision of social housing in Wales. Scotland has recently announced a
short life Housing Investment Task Force to look at a range of ways of
supplementing investment for social and affordable housing.

e The capacity of the sector (and the wider construction industry) to develop,
manage and deliver an expanded social housing programme.

e The competing priorities facing social housing organisations, within and
beyond government housing programmes, between investing in additional
provision and investing in the existing social housing stock. This includes
tackling the decarbonisation of the existing social housing stock.

e Land and planning constraints.

Securing the Levels of Investment needed in Social Housing.

Earlier, we highlighted some of the evidence of the need for social housing in Wales
and highlighted the 20,000 additional social homes target for 2021-2026, and the
progress made in the first two years.

The Welsh Government’s budget for 2024-25 has allocated £370m for social housing
grant to support additional provision through housing associations, as well as an
additional £14.4m to local authorities through the Local Government settlement.
There are also commitments to decarbonisation (including £70m for 2024-25 for the
Optimised Retrofit Programme) and £18m this year for the WHQS2 programme.
These are welcome levels of public investment in challenging economic times.
However, there are questions as to the extent to which overall levels of investment
(public and private) are sufficient to deliver the required levels of social housing,
whether levels of public investment provide both housing quality and the best value

2 Due to word length limits, this list is not comprehensive. Space constraints mean we do not talk about
RAAC or go in to much detail about the potential for innovative private investment and other innovative
financing ideas to support affordable housing supply.

Tudalenay pecyn 35



for money, and the extent to which public subsidies are being stretched to maximise
output of additional social housing. We would point out that over the last 2-3 years
inflation has significantly impacted upon the costs of housing development. Although
the annual rate of inflation is now falling, over the last few years social landlords
have been faced with significant increases in material and energy costs, labour costs
and the costs of borrowing. The Welsh Government social rent and service charge
standard (previously rent policy) gives Ministers the power to determine the annual
uplift in social sector rents when CPI is outside of the 1%-3% range. However,
annual uplifts have been below inflation levels, increasing the pressure on the
budgets of social landlords.

We noted above that data from statswales shows housing associations (RSLs)
delivered 70% of the additional homes provided in 2022-23, 87% of which were
newly built. The number of additional homes delivered by associations in 2022-23
was 11% more than in 2021-22, but 22% fewer units than in 2020-21. Local
authorities delivered 20% of the additional affordable homes in 2022-23, the majority
of which were in just 5 local authorities: Cardiff, Carmarthenshire, Swansea, Powys
and the Isle of Anglesey. Other Welsh authorities provided relatively small numbers
of additional council homes, either through newbuild or acquisition (or a combination
of the two).

The ability of social landlords to deliver additional social and affordable housing will,
of course, be shaped by the availability of public subsidies. Statswales data for 2022-
23 indicate that over 72% of additional affordable housing delivered received capital
grant funding. This was higher than in the previous three financial years (only 61.6%
of those homes delivered in 2019-2 were capital grant funded).

We are aware that the 2019 Independent Review of Affordable Housing Supply
(Welsh Government, 2019) proposed a new flexible grant funding regime which
would test the contribution of private finance and alternative finance models, in order
to stretch grant resources and maximise output and demonstrate value for money.
Whilst we understand a revised grant system has been introduced, we are not aware
of any evaluation which has been undertaken to test how this in working in the
current environment.

Issues of Capacity

The social housing sector in Wales is relatively small. There are only 30-35 regulated
housing associations in Wales (and we are aware of a number of potential mergers
which may reduce this number). This includes 11 Large Scale Voluntary Transfers
(LSVTs), some of which are in the early years of developing new housing
programmes. Others are relatively small organisations. There are only 11 Welsh
local authorities which retain ownership of social housing, and again many of these
are in the early stages of returning to a housing development role. The delivery of
additional social housing is likely to be dependent upon a relatively small number of
developing social landlords, and in some instances, there will need for increased
collaboration, partnership working and innovation both for development and funding.

Tudalen y pecyn 36



The issue of increasing housing supply is also dependent upon the capacity and
skills of the construction industry. It has been estimated that around one in twenty
jobs in Wales are in this sector and construction (and housing) make valuable
contributions to economic development in Wales, through multiplier effects of
investment as well as the benefits of preventative spending. However, there will
always be issues of competition between housing development and non-housing
forms of development, and housing (perhaps particularly social housing) may not
always be the most attractive option for the development industry.

It is also worth highlighting the potential contribution which scaling up the
contribution of off-site manufacturing and Modern Methods of Construction (MMC).
These issues were considered in the Independent Review of Affordable Housing
Supply (Welsh Government, 2019) and CaCHE has published its own research on
MMC (Serin and Payne, 2023). That research concluded that the wider adoption of
MMC required a broader investigation of the whole housing development process.
We are interested to note proposals in Wales for the creation of an arms-length not-
for-profit company (Unnos), which would not only support MMC, but also the
development of Welsh supply chains, assist local construction SMEs and play a
strategic role in land assembly. Such an initiative could build upon work already
being done by individual social landlords in Wales and also give significant stimulus
to future social housing supply.

Finally, we highlight the issues of skills, training, and professional development.
Does Wales have the necessary skilled workforce - in housing (particularly housing
development), in construction and in land use planning, both now and into the
future? If not, what actions are being taken to address the skills deficits?

Competing Priorities

One of the major challenges faced by social landlords (and the housing sector more
generally) is the competing priorities between investing in the existing social housing
stock and providing the new homes which are needed. There are a number of
different aspects to the policy agenda for remediating or improving the existing social
housing stock. These include:

e Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) 2023
e The residential decarbonisation agenda.
e Fire safety measures.

Welsh Government published its WHQS 2023 standards in October last year. When
WHQS was first introduced (2002) there were serious levels of disrepair in the Welsh
housing stock. Whilst the original deadline for achieving WHQS was not met, by
March 2022 (and allowing for “acceptable fails”) almost all of the Welsh social
housing stock was WHQS compliant.

WHQS 2023 builds upon the original standard (and retains many of the individual
elements) but as well as continuing the ongoing improvement of the stock, also aims
to accelerate the decarbonisation of the Welsh social housing stock and support

Tudalensy pecyn 37



efforts to reach net zero. The timetable for achieving WHQS 2023 is 315 March
2034.

We have noted above that monies have been allocated in the Welsh Government
budget for 2024-25 for investment in WHQS 20233. It will be critical that there is
continued long term funding to support the delivery of the programme.

In a number of ways, the social housing sector has been in the vanguard of policies
and innovative solutions to address the decarbonisation agenda in Wales (perhaps
reflecting that until recently the housing agenda has been within the portfolio of the
Minister for Climate Change). However, we recognise the potential competing
priorities, particularly given the timescales for achieving WHQS 2023 and the targets
for decarbonisation and reaching net zero, as well as the potential risks of
inadequate or short-term funding leading to poor decisions.

Land and Planning Constraints

There are a number of critical issues under this heading, and we are only able to
touch upon a small number of these.

We note that the Independent Review of Affordable Housing Supply
recommended the establishment of an arms-length body to act as a focus for land
assembly and management to help accelerate housing development. Whilst we
understand there is now a land division with the Housing and Regeneration
Directorate of Welsh Government, and that since political devolution such arms-
length bodies have been out of fashion, there may be a case for this. We referred
above (under issues of capacity) to the suggestion of a publicly owned company,
accountable to Welsh Government, which as well as supporting residential
development and construction, could play a strategic role in land assembly in Wales.

A second issue is around land value capture. Land values are an important aspect of
housing delivery. Whilst it is critical that land values are sufficient to outweigh
development costs and provide a return for landowners and developers, there may
also be a case for enhanced land values to be shared with the wider community.
Land values vary significantly across Wales, with some of the most valuable in areas
like Cardiff, Newport, Monmouthshire, and the Vale of Glamorgan (as well as some
tourist/holiday hotspots). Research for Welsh Government (2020) has provided an
estimate of the total value of residential land in Wales (£113.4 billion) and an initial
assessment of the viability of a local land value tax.

We have referred above to concerns around the capacity of the planning system in
Wales and we want to turn our attention now to look at the delivery of additional
affordable housing through planning obligations. Evidence from statswales shows
that in 2022-23 30% of all additional affordable housing across Wales was delivered
through planning obligations. In proportionate terms this was up slightly on the
previous three years. Over the last four years just under 4,500 additional homes
have been delivered under this mechanism. However, we note the commentary from

3The capital budget in Scotland for housing has fallen by around a third over the last two fiscal
statements (2023-24 and 2024-25).

Tudalen y pecyn 38



statswales that the delivery is consistently lower than the number granted planning
permission.

We also note with concern evidence from the Home Builders’ Federation (HBF,
2023) of the levels of unused s106 contributions across England and Wales.
Specifically in relation to Wales (and based on returns from 14 local authorities) they
highlight over £71million in unspent contributions; an average of £5.1 million per
Welsh authority. Whilst not all of this would be for additional affordable housing, their
evidence does suggest there is capacity to increase investment in the affordable
housing supply in some Welsh local authorities, using developer contributions.

Encouraging the Involvement of Local Communities in the
Development Process

We applaud the concern for the engagement of local communities in the
development process, which we assume could be through the Local Development
Plan process and (for existing social housing tenants) through appropriate
mechanisms put in place by their landlords.

In terms of the tenant voice, we argued in our Housing in Wales: Evidence for
Government 2021-26 paper that Welsh Government should do more to facilitate
tenant engagement both locally and at a national level. Notwithstanding the valuable
work of TPAS Cymru, more needs to be done to ensure the voices of tenants and
residents are heard in shaping housing policy and practice in Wales. Relatedly, we
would also highlight the need to encourage more positive attitudes towards social
housing. Research for CIH Cymru (Scully, 2020) showed significant public
recognition of the need for social housing in Wales, but also showed some distinctly
negative perceptions of the tenure.

References

CaCHE Papers on Social Housing

Frey, J. (2018) Social Housing in Northern Ireland: Challenges and policy
options.

Gibb, K. (2018) Funding new social and affordable housing: ideas, evidence
and options.

Marsh, A. (2018) Social housing governance.

Serin, B., Gibb, K. and Kintrea, K. (2018) Social housing in Scotland.
Smith, B. (2018) Social housing in Wales.

Other CaCHE References

James, G. and Gibb, K. (2021) Housing in Scotland: Evidence for Government
2021-2026.

Tudalensy pecyn 39



Serin, B. and Payne, S (2023) The potential role of Modern Methods of
Construction in addressing systemic supply issues.

Smith, B. and Mackie, P. (2021) Housing in Wales: Evidence for Government
2021-2026.

Other References

Bramley, G. (2018) Housing supply requirements across Great Britain, London,
Crisis and National Housing Federation.

Home Builders Federation (2023) Section 106 Agreements and unspent
developer contributions in England and Wales. London, HBF.

Scully, R. (2020) Public attitudes to social housing in Wales, Cardiff, Chartered
Institute of Housing Cymru.

Welsh Government (2019) Independent Review of Affordable Housing Supply:
Final Report, Cardiff, Welsh Government.

Welsh Government (2020) Local land value tax: technical assessment, Cardiff,
Welsh Government.

Tudalen y pecyn 40



Annex Scottish Affordable Housing Supply Programme: Outcomes,
Performance and Current Challenges

The Affordable Housing Supply Programme (AHSP) has delivered new social and
affordable housing in Scotland since 2011 and is now in its third Parliamentary
programme. However, after two sets of targets were achieved, the current one,
stretching over the current parliamentary term and the next one, is now in serious
difficulties. Here we briefly set out the programme, its achievement, current problems
and what might be done, and also asks what lessons might be learned relevant to
Wales.

The AHSP began 2011 after the election of a majority SNP government as a five-
year plan to supply 30,000 social and affordable homes (60% general needs social
housing, plus affordable mid-market rent (grant-funded) and low-cost home
ownership). Social housing was characterised by comparatively deep grants to
housing associations and councils as well as substantial but less generous grants to
mid-market rent providers (usually housing associations), topped up by internal
resources, private loans and in the case of councils through PWLB loans. The
second programme, 2016-21, slightly extended by Covid-19, delivered 50,000 units
with now 70% social housing and a slight affordable shift away from owning to
renting.

The national targets were informed by affordable needs studies (Powell et al, 2015;
Dunning et al, 2020). An Audit Scotland (2020) review of the programme indicated
that it successfully met its targets but was not well connected to local need and
meeting local outcomes, in part because of the top-down allocation of funds and the
slightly opaque way resources were converted into specific projects on the ground.
Nonetheless per head, Scotland was building most social housing in the UK for
almost all of this period (Gibb, 2021).

As a result of the long-term housing strategy produced at the end of 2020, Housing
to 2040, Scotland then embarked on a two-term programme to deliver 110,000 unios
by 2031-32, still with 70% of the programme devoted to social general needs
housing provided by associations and councils. Throughout this current Parliament
and the previous, the Scottish Government allocated £3.5 billion (nominal) to each 5-
year period as its contribution to the programme’s funding.

However, in a worsening context of a temporary accommodation crisis, rising
homelessness and affordability difficulties, with four local authorities declaring a
hosing emergency?, the programme is running into major difficulties with forward
indicators of approvals and starts now falling well behind the required 10,000 per
annum figures. This is for several reasons:

e Rising developments costs outstripping increases in benchmark grant levels
e Increasing borrowing costs and rising inflation for material and labour within
the construction sector

4 Argyll & Bute, Edinburgh, Glasgow and Fife

Tudaleny pecyn 41



e For financial years 2023-4 and 2024-5, significant budget cuts to the housing
capital programme — cumulatively by more than a third

e Housing providers are in some cases withdrawing from development, and in
addition face competing claims on their rental income eg stock investment
and retrofit for net zero,

CaCHE is involved in research for Joseph Rowntree Foundation seeking to support
the programme and offer immediate, medium term and longer terms ways to
enhance affordable and social housing supply®. We recently gave evidence to the
Scottish Parliament Local government committee (February 27, 2024) and
suggested the following:

First, combining this evidence with our own analysis of the AHSP process and the
place of the supply programme in terms of budget priorities, we conclude that there
needs to be a number of important review processes to inform revising how need is
measured, resources are allocated and housing fits into budget priorities, in order to
improve actual outcomes on the ground. These include but are not limited to: a new
study of social provider financial capacity, a new national affordable need study, but
one connected to much clearer local outcomes and bottom up or localised housing
needs and demand assessment; greater discretion to allow underspends to be
carried over to the next financial year; and, a transparent reviews of benchmark
grant levels, the distribution of funds to local authorities and an updating of the
funding specific to Glasgow and Edinburgh.

In addition to these process-focused evidencing reforms, there is clearly pressing
need for change. Below we illustrate some of the early ideas, with the focus is on
how to get as much from the existing programme that meets need by providing more
homes, and distinguishing immediate or short run ideas, from medium and longer
term proposals (more radical or systemic in outlook, such as altering the devolved
fiscal framework to allow more borrowing by the Scottish Parliament specific for
social housing as repayable via rents social infrastructure):

e Political choices to switch grant funding into social housing from affordable
and to raise grant per unit — to secure units rather than the target.

e Develop a state-backed guarantee low-cost lending model for affordable rent
(and also for acquisitions from the PRS for Temporary Accommodation?).

e Encourage reforms to provide more low-cost land into the system and
facilitate larger site collaborations e.g. Inter public sector land prices reduced
where it is for social housing.

¢ Institutional reform ideas include e.g. a national housing and land agency,
supporting a pipeline of larger sites, including new master-planned
partnership-based settlements and new towns.

e Aflavour of our more radical long term thinking would include land market
interventions and tax reform.®

5 We anticipate this will be published in May or June 2024.
5 See also Gibb, K 2024 commentary in the Heald:

https://www.heraldscotland.com/politics/viewpoint/24217163.housing-challenges-must-tackled-election/

Tudalen y pecyn 42


https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.heraldscotland.com%2Fpolitics%2Fviewpoint%2F24217163.housing-challenges-must-tackled-election%2F&data=05%7C02%7CKen.Gibb%40glasgow.ac.uk%7C433888143d074e438e6708dc52f4d26f%7C6e725c29763a4f5081f22e254f0133c8%7C1%7C0%7C638476458643738882%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bUzGMuRTMEn6iYM2sXqDJUoXaR8S%2BZ5fqri0TJSh6lY%3D&reserved=0

Meanwhile, the Government has set up a delivery board for Housing to 2040 and
accelerated its mid-term review, including examining the AHSP, and it has recently
launched a housing investment task force.

What does this all imply for the Welsh Senedd contemplating a long-term supply
programme? First, design a robust and resilient programme that can ride out
significant external shocks. This will require cross-party and sector wide commitment
to the programme based on unambiguous evidence about unmet need. Second,
provide adequate public funding that can work in different market contexts and allow
providers choice given the competing demands on their rental income. Third, design
specific interventions and structures that facilitate the programme’s delivery mindful
of the wider housing system and the interplay between different tenures, submarkets
and wider reserved matters like social security and UK borrowing conditions.

Annex References

Audit Scotland (2020) Affordable Housing: The Scottish Government’s Affordable
Housing Supply Target. Accounts commission and Audit Scotland: Edinburgh.

Dunning, R, Ferrari, E, Hoolachan, J, Keskin, B, Moore, T, O’'Brien, P and Powell, R
(2020) Affordable Housing Need in Scotland post 2021. CIH/SFHA Shelter.

Gibb, K (2021) ‘Divergent approaches to affordable housing supply in a devolved
policy system: Scotland and England after 2010, International Journal of Urban
Sciences, 25:sup1, 218-240

Powell, R., Dunning, R., Ferrari, E., & McKee, K. (2015). Affordable housing needs in
Scotland — final report. Shelter/Scottish Federation of Housing
Associations/Chartered Institute of Housing.

Scottish Government (2021) Housing to 2040 Route Map. Scottish Government:
Edinburgh https://www.gov.scot/publications/housing-2040-2/pages/5/

Tudaleny pecyn 43


https://www.gov.scot/publications/housing-2040-2/pages/5/

Tudalen y @cyn 44



Papur 2 / Paper 2
Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Senedd Cymru Local Government and Housing Committee Inquiry into Social
Housing Supply: Response to Call for Evidence

Introduction

This is a response the Senedd Cymru Local Government and Housing Committee’s
(‘the Committee’) call for evidence in relation to its inquiry into social housing supply.
It has been prepared by Dr Edward Shepherd, Senior Lecturer in Planning and
Development at the School of Geography and Planning, Cardiff University.

Dr Shepherd holds a PhD in Land Economy from the University of Cambridge and
has 11 years of experience conducting research on planning, land value taxation,
land value capture, the politics of housing supply and the housebuilding industry.! He
is currently leading a three-year Economic and Social Research Council-funded
project on the politics of land value capture policy in England (grant reference
ES/W001675/1).

Terms of Reference

Given the author’s background and expertise, this document will address the below
issues from the Committee’s Terms of Reference with a particular emphasis on the
first item:

1. The potential for increasing income from land value capture mechanisms to
invest in social housing.
2. How effectively the planning system is supporting social housebuilding.

Definitions
Social housing

Although social housing is not defined in the Terms of Reference, for the purposes of
this consultation response it shall be taken to mean homes for social rent,
intermediate homes for rent and shared ownership. To be more consistent with
terminology used in planning practice, these tenures will here be collectively referred
to as ‘affordable housing’.

However, the Glossary to the Welsh Government’s Technical Advice Note 2:
Planning and Affordable Housing? also includes equity sharing schemes within the
definition of affordable housing, although this tenure does not form part of the
government’s current commitment to deliver 20,000 low carbon homes for rent in the
social sector for the current government term.

Land value capture

Land value capture can be defined as any mechanism that enables the state to
collect a proportion of land value, either via a recurring tax or event-based
instruments. Therefore, at its broadest, land value capture tools could include

" Alist of Edward Shepherd’s publications is here: https://profiles.cardiff.ac.uk/staff/shepherde6
2 https://www.gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-2-planning-and-affordable-housing

Tudalen y pecyn 45



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

property taxes currently charged in Wales, including council tax, non-domestic rates,
Land Transaction Tax, as well as capital gains tax and inheritance tax on property.

While there may be potential to more effectively tax property wealth in Wales to fund
public services and infrastructure (including affordable housing)?, for the purposes of
this consultation response land value capture shall be assumed to predominately
refer to a more limited set of event-based tools that are embedded within the
planning system.

Such tools target the land value uplift that is crystallised by the grant of planning
permission for a more valuable use. Depending on the value of the land in its
existing use and the nature of the proposed development, the uplift can be very
significant. There are two such mechanisms currently in use in Wales: planning
obligations (otherwise known as Section 106 agreements) and the Community
Infrastructure Levy.

Planning obligations are used by local planning authorities in Wales to seek to
secure a proportion of affordable housing from developers and landowners via
policy-based negotiation. Contributions can either be in cash or in kind (although the
latter tends to be preferred). Where new affordable housing is provided directly by a
private developer, these are usually sold to a Registered Social Landlord (at a
discount compared with market homes) who will then own and manage the homes.
Planning obligations are also used to secure contributions intended to mitigate site-
specific impacts of development and thereby render development proposals
acceptable in planning terms.

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was introduced in 2010 and is used to
secure contributions from new development for the provision of infrastructure.
According to research by Planning Resource magazine, as at April 2023 only
Rhondda Cynon Taf, Merthyr Tydfil and Caerphilly had adopted CIL, with a further six
councils having started the process towards adoption.* Although optional to
introduce, once adopted, CIL is non-negotiable.

Although generally thought of as being a means for local authorities to secure
contributions from private (for profit) developers and landowners, CIL and planning
obligations are also used in relation to Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) and local
authorities should they engage in development. Indeed, RSLs in Wales are
increasingly seeking to deliver their own developments, which can include a
proportion of market housing to improve viability (Williams et al., n.d.).

3 The Welsh Government has signalled it is interested in the potential for local land value taxation to
replace council tax and non-domestic rates, and this was the subject of a technical assessment
published in 2020 (ap Gwilym et al., 2020).

4 https://www.planningresource.co.uk/article/1212817/mapped-community-infrastructure-levy-updated-
12042023

Tudalen y pecyn 46



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Summary of Available Statistical Data on the Supply of Affordable Housing in
Wales

Appendix A sets out some of the key available data regarding the supply of
affordable housing in Wales. These data suggest that:

e Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) provide the vast majority of additional
affordable housing each year (80%-90% per year between 2018 — 2022, with
a drop to 70% in 2023).

e ‘Other providers’ (including private developers) have accounted for by far the
smallest proportion of new affordable homes at 2%-3% per year between
2018 and 2022 (with an increase to 9% in 2023).

e Most of the new affordable housing delivered by RSLs is for social rent. This
provides an indication of the overall trend given RSLs deliver most additional
affordable housing.

e Planning obligations have accounted for between 23-30% of new affordable
housing over the last five years (reaching closer to 35% prior to this). These
data include planning obligations entered into by RSLs and local authorities
(rather than solely by private developers).

e The number of affordable homes delivered by ‘other providers’ (including
private developers via planning obligations) as a proportion of new dwellings
completed by private enterprise has consistently been around 2%-3% in the
period 2015-2022, although rose to 7% in 2022-23. Although there are
problems with these data (see Appendix A for details) and they should be
interpreted in conjunction with data on financial contributions towards
affordable housing, they do suggest that private developers may be
consistently providing a proportion of affordable housing on their schemes
that are below policy requirements.®

e The number of affordable homes granted consent via planning obligations is
consistently higher than the number of affordable homes delivered via
planning obligations. This suggests potential viability issues impacting
schemes following planning permission. It also indicates the importance of
maintaining an adequate supply of planning permissions.

e Local authorities are finding it difficult to spend funds paid to them for the
provision of affordable housing in the form of financial contributions via
planning obligations. This has resulted in a growing total of such funds
reaching around £27 million in 2022-23. This could be because of difficulties

5 Note that these data do not take account of other financial contributions via planning obligations or
CIL that may be made by private developers in addition to those specifically for affordable housing.

Tudalen y pecyn 47



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

in sourcing suitable development sites and/or existing homes for tenure
conversion and lack of expertise in development.

e Although local authorities appear to be finding it challenging to spend financial
contributions, they are increasingly making land available for the provision of
affordable housing through new build schemes or through the purchase,
leasing or conversion of existing units. Public sector land is making a
significant and growing contribution to new affordable housing as a proportion
of overall additional affordable housing supply, rising from 22% in 2021-22 to
40% in 2022-23.

The data suggest that land value capture in the form of contributions towards
affordable housing via planning obligations (from private developers, RSLs and local
authorities) is making a significant contribution to the overall provision of affordable
housing in Wales. However, there is also evidence that private developers may
consistently be making affordable housing contributions on their schemes that are
below policy requirements. To understand why this may be the case, it is important to
consider:

e the nature of development land markets and land supply;
e the development viability mechanism;

¢ the role of viability in affordable housing negotiations;

e viability guidance and Benchmark Land Value; and

e Wales viability policy.

Each of these shall now be considered in turn.
Development land markets and land supply

Planning obligations and CIL (collectively referred to here as ‘developer
contributions’) are considered forms of land value capture because, in theory, the
payments made by these mechanisms are capitalised into development land prices.
In theory, when a speculative private housing developer negotiates with a landowner
to purchase a development site, they review local planning policy and seek to reflect
the cost of meeting policy requirements in the price of the land. In terms of land
value capture, these costs could include CIL payments, payments to mitigate site-
specific impacts and an affordable housing contribution.®

However, in practice, because landowners have the final say in releasing
development land’, and planning obligations are negotiable, the real land market
does not always operate according to theory. Private landowners will not usually sell
their land for development unless they can make what they consider a sufficient
financial gain, which will usually be considered in terms of the degree of land value

6 Affordable housing contributions can be reflected in a lower total value for the scheme (because
affordable housing commands a lower financial value than market housing) or higher development
costs via a financial contribution to the local authority.

7 The exception to this is in cases where the land is purchased compulsorily via a Compulsory
Purchase Order. This tool exists precisely to overcome unwillingness to sell. The circumstances in
which it can be used are, quite rightly, tightly controlled.

Tudalen y pecyn 48



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

uplift from the value of the land in its existing use (e.g. farmland if a greenfield
development). For residential development land, landowner expectations are
influenced by conditions in the housing market (because house prices influence land
values) and in the development land market (because the availability of land and
prices paid for similar land also influence land prices).

Market conditions, planning policy and the expectations of landowners therefore
work together to set a minimum threshold for land prices that, if not met by
developers, will result in them not being able to secure development sites. Therefore,
although the supply of planning consents is an important factor in the supply of
development land, so are the expectations of landowners and their willingness to sell
land.

Developers need development sites to stay in business, and so may be incentivised
to agree prices for land that do not fully reflect policy requirements on affordable
housing on the expectation that they can engage in a viability negotiations with the
local authority. Furthermore, if market or regulatory conditions change between
relevant local planning policy being adopted, agreeing a land price with a landowner
and submitting a planning application, this can also prompt viability negotiations.

The development viability mechanism

Development viability is now a central consideration in plan-making and
development management in Wales. At its simplest, viability is assessed by
calculating the total predicted value of the development and then subtracting from
this all the costs associated with delivery. If the total costs (including payments to the
local authority in the form of developer contributions plus the landowner’s return and
the developer’s profit) do not exceed the value of the development, then the scheme
is considered viable.

Paragraph 4.2.20 of Planning Policy Wales Edition 128 requires that financial viability
of housing sites is “assessed prior to their inclusion as allocations in a development
plan”. The Development Plans Manual Edition 3° provides guidance regarding this.
The intention is that allocated sites should be able to viably deliver policy required
developer contributions, including affordable housing.

The Development Plans Manual therefore seeks to ensure that development sites
are allocated only if they are viable while delivering the ‘broad levels’ of affordable
housing required by the local planning authority. Paragraph 3.51 of the Development
Plans Manual therefore states: “Further viability testing at the planning application
stage should only be required on an exceptional basis.” However, in practice, viability
negotiations at application stage do frequently happen.

This is because there is only a finite amount of value from a development that can be
divided between the landowner, the developer and the local authority (in the form of
developer contributions) once all the other costs of development have been covered.

8 https://www.gov.wales/planning-policy-wales
9 https://www.gov.wales/development-plans-manual-edition-3-march-2020

Tudalen y pecyn 49



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Therefore, if any of the following affect a residential development, it can be perceived
to negatively impact viability:

e Build costs have increased (e.g. due to inflation caused by geopolitical
events).

e House prices have decreased (e.g. due to lack of mortgage availability).

e The cost of finance has increased.

e The regulatory environment has changed resulting in higher build costs (e.g.
fire safety, building regulations relating to energy efficiency).

e There are exceptional costs to delivery e.g. significant infrastructure or ground
remediation costs.

These are just some of the issues that can negatively impact viability. Clearly, spatial
variation in local house prices, the specifics of a particular development scheme and
site-specific ground conditions and infrastructure requirements mean that there can
be spatial variation in the viability of development projects.

For example, an undeveloped greenfield site on the edge of an existing settlement in
an area with relatively high house prices is likely to be more viable (and therefore
able to provide more developer contributions) than a previously developed
brownfield site with complex ground conditions in an area with lower house prices.

This, of course, means that the potential for land value capture varies by local
market area and specific development site. The potential for land value capture is
greatest in areas where there are high property values and development sites that
do not have complex and costly delivery requirements.

Where viability is challenged, a developer may seek to either cut costs, maximise
value (or both) in order to improve viability. If this is not possible, the development is
unlikely to proceed.

The role of viability in affordable housing negotiations

Although all the assumptions going into a viability calculation are important, for the
purposes of calculating viability for planning there are two fundamental necessities.
In the words of the Development Plans Manual (para 3.47) these are that the
development provides “an adequate profit margin for the developer and a meaningful
uplift in value for the land owner”.

The rationale for this is that the developer needs to be sufficiently incentivised to
take on the risk of the development and the landowner needs to be sufficiently
incentivised to sell their land. The implication is that unless these conditions are met,
the development will not be delivered and the site will stall. Indeed, research
conducted by Arcadis for the Welsh Government has shown that viability has been a
significant factor on stalled sites in Wales (Thompson, 2020).

In such cases, applicants may submit a viability calculation that seeks to
demonstrate that the development cannot make policy-required contributions while
also delivering an ‘adequate profit margin’ for the developer and a ‘meaningful uplift’
in land value for the landowner. Therefore, in viability negotiations of this kind, the

Tudalen y pecyn 50



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

assumed ‘adequate profit margin’ and ‘meaningful uplift’ in land value (otherwise
known as the Benchmark Land Value) is crucial because increases or decreases in
these will result in more or less value being available for developer contributions
such as affordable housing.

Indeed, research conducted by Arcadis for the Welsh Government on viability in
planning found that there were a “high level of instances at which [sic] affordable
housing requirements are negotiated down on the back of a variety of factors
affecting site viability (ranging from abnormals such as ground conditions through to
agent demands for land value)’ (Arcadis, 2018: 14 — emphasis added). The 2020
Arcadis report on stalled sites further states: “The combination of high expectations
from landowners in terms of land value, combined with high development costs...and
relatively low sales values make sites either marginally viable or unviable in many
parts of Wales” (Thompson, 2020: 22 — emphasis added).

This is obviously why RSLs and local authorities can typically provide more
affordable housing as part of their schemes — they have very different requirements
to private market actors regarding financial returns. If a local authority contributes
land to a development, they may be able to so at much less than ‘market value’. If a
(not for profit) RSL delivers a development, they can do so without requiring market
rates of developer profit. This means there is more value that can flow towards
providing affordable housing.

Viability guidance and Benchmark Land Value

In England, the mechanics of the development viability calculation have been the
subject of significant controversy on the basis that developers and landowners were
exploiting weaknesses in the viability model and laxity in the English planning
guidance on viability (Crosby & Wyatt, 2016; McAllister, Street & Wyatt, 2015;
McAllister, 2017; Grayston, 2017). There was evidence that some developers were
successfully arguing that they could not provide policy-required levels of affordable
housing because they had been compelled by landowners to pay prices for land that
did not fully price these in (Crosby & Wyatt, 2019).

This, in effect, meant that the Benchmark Land Value was higher than it should have
been in some viability negotiations. Landowners had grown used to achieving prices
that did not fully reflect policy requirements, and developers were willing to pay such
prices on the expectation that they would be able to successfully negotiate with the
local planning authority. This resulted in a so-called ‘circularity problem’, whereby the
market had normalised lower than policy-required levels of affordable housing in land
prices, and this market evidence was then used by developers to successfully
negotiate sub-policy required levels of affordable housing in subsequent planning
consents (Crosby, 2018; Sayce et al., 2017).

This resulted in the government making adjustments to the English viability guidance
in 2018.1° These adjustments were aimed at minimising the scope for developers

10 hitps://www.gov.uk/quidance/viability

Tudalen y pecyn 51



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

and landowners to reduce affordable housing contributions via the process described
above. In particular, this involved:

e specifying that “under no circumstances will the price paid for land be a
relevant justification for failing to accord with relevant policies in the plan”;

¢ requiring that Benchmark Land Value should be calculated based on existing
use value plus a premium (rather than simply being based on what similar
sites have sold for in the market) and should be based on market evidence
that has been adjusted to reflect full policy compliance;

e introducing a requirement that viability assessments be made publicly
available other than in exceptional circumstances.

What the English experience demonstrates is the importance of the viability
calculation to the levels of affordable (and social) housing that are delivered via
planning obligations. It also demonstrates the importance of having clear policy that
can guide the market and planners such that expectations of providing policy-levels
of affordable housing are priced into the land market where possible.

However, under the present land value capture regime it is also essential to
recognise that, where housing (and affordable housing) is delivered by market
actors, policy on affordable housing tends to seek to leave enough value with the
landowner and the developer to incentivise them to engage in the development
process.

In London, where property values can be very high relative to, say, Cardiff, there was
enough ‘headroom’ in land values for these to cover more tightly enforced policy.
Clearly, Wales as a whole has a very different pattern of property and land values to
London. Therefore, the extent to which there is potential to secure more developer
contributions via land value capture in Wales presently depends in large part on local
land and house prices, the level at which contributions are set in policy as well as the
expectations of landowners. However, it should also be emphasised that these
expectations can change in response to policy as well as changes in market
conditions.

Wales viability policy

Compared with English planning policy, Wales has less detailed guidance
concerning the calculation of development viability. However, the Development Plans
Manual contains useful high-level guidance for plan-making purposes. The guidance
on Delivering Affordable Housing Using Section 106 Agreements guidance (2008)"
and guidance update (2009)'? provides other detail, although this is now over 15
years old. Many local authorities in Wales are now using a Development Viability
Model produced by surveying firm Burrows Hutchinson Ltd for plan-making and, in
some instances, for determining viability at planning application stage.

11 hitps://www.gov.wales/delivering-affordable-housing-using-section-106-agreements-practice-

gquidance
12 hitps://www.gov.wales/delivering-affordable-housing-using-section-106-agreements-guidance-

update

Tudalen y pecyn 52



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

However, the existing policy does not provide specific and detailed guidance
regarding the issue of Benchmark Land Value as well as other procedural issues.
Furthermore, there is no existing requirement to make viability calculations publicly
available, despite the 2018 Arcadis research on viability in planning recommending
that: “Viability assessments prepared to accompany planning applications should be
available in the public domain in order to promote greater transparency” (Arcadis,
2018: 34).

Benchmark Land Value in Wales

Regarding Benchmark Land Value, Table 24 (Viability Modelling Considerations) of
the Development Plans Manual states: “Evidence of prices paid for comparable land
will be a suitable starting point, adjusted where necessary to take account of any
difference between past and proposed planning policy and / or infrastructure
requirements”. However, the guidance is less unequivocal than the English guidance
regarding the need to ensure that Benchmark Land Values that are used for viability
negotiations at planning application reflect full policy requirements.

Furthermore, the approach to Benchmark Land Value set out in the Development
Plans Manual still potentially leaves open the possibility of landowner expectations of
land prices based on out-of-date policy being used to set (and potentially limit) new
policy requirements for affordable housing, given that market evidence of prices paid
for land are the starting point.

Indeed, a letter from Savills dated 15 July 2020 in Appendix 3 to the Bridgend Local
Development Plan 2018-2019 Plan-Wide Viability Assessment 2021'3 states that, in
their view, the Benchmark Land Values originally proposed for plan-making were too
low “based principally on information from minimum price clauses within option
agreements” (among other evidence)'*. This advice resulted in the changes to
Benchmark Land Values shown in Table 1, along with the multiples from agricultural
land value (assumed at £18,000 per hectare)'®. Multiples range from 28-42 in the
higher value areas based on the revised BLVs. The originally proposed BLVs for the
same areas still produced very high multiples of 22-33.

This use of evidence from minimum agreed land prices in option agreements will
have presumably reduced the value headroom available to support the delivery of
affordable housing within the local authority. It is unclear why prices previously
agreed between landowners and developers without the involvement of the local
planning authority should necessarily be catered to in policy at the expense of higher

'3 https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s25795/Appendix%2032%20-%20Plan-
Wide%20Viability%20Assessment%202021.pdf

4 Option agreements with landowners are one means by which housebuilders access development
sites. Terms vary, but they usually involve the housebuilder promoting the site through the planning
system and then purchasing the land once planning permission has been granted. The purchase price
is usually determined via a third-party valuation, with a pre-agreed minimum land price to protect the
landowner should market conditions change.

5 The agricultural existing use value and resultant multipliers in Table 1 are only a broad indication. In
reality, the existing use value of specific sites will vary. For example, if the development site is in
industrial use, this is very likely to have a higher existing use value than agricultural use, and so the
multiple will be lower.

Tudalen y pecyn 53



Dr Edward Shepherd

19 April 2024

levels of affordable housing when there is also the option to seek to manage
landowner expectations via policy setting. There is a need for further research to
systematically investigate the setting of Benchmark Land Values for plan-making in
Wales and the role Benchmark Land Values play in affordable housing viability

negotiations at application stage.

Table 1: Adjustments to Benchmark Land Values (BLV) for plan-making in Bridgend

(2021)
Market area Original BLVs (£ Multiple of Adjusted BLVs (£ Multiple of
per net Original BLVs per net Adjusted BLVs
developable based on developable based on
hectare) agricultural hectare) agricultural land
land value value (£18,000 per
(£18,000 per hectare)
hectare)
Porthcawl 600,000 33 750,000 42
Bridgend / Pencoed | 500,000 28 620,000 34
Pyle / Valleys 400,000 22 500,000 28
Gateway
Valleys 200,000 11 250,000 14

Notes: Data and assumptions taken from Bridgend Local Development Plan 2018-2019 Plan-Wide Viability
Assessment 2021, pp. 110-111.

Conclusion

Affordable housing secured via planning obligations accounts for a significant
proportion of overall additional affordable housing supply. However, the data suggest
that most of the affordable homes secured via planning obligations are provided by
RSLs and local authorities and that private developers may be consistently providing
less than policy-required levels of affordable housing (although further research is
needed given problems with the data).

This may be due to adverse market and site conditions that negatively impact
viability and prevent sites from coming forward (including for affordable housing), as
suggested by previous research by Arcadis. This is more of a risk in areas of Wales
that have lower house prices relative to other areas. It is certainly, in part, due to the
financial return requirements of private developers and landowners. It may also be
that lack of clear policy guidance regarding development viability negotiations could
be inflating landowner expectations in some circumstances, thereby exerting
downward pressure on developer contributions (although further research is
needed).

In the short term, there is therefore an opportunity to provide more detailed policy
guidance regarding viability for planning, with a particular emphasis on developer
profit and benchmark land value. This should be aimed at seeking to ensure that full
policy requirements are reflected in land prices as far as reasonably possible and
that policy requirements determined via plan making are not unduly limited by the
‘sticky’ financial expectations of landowners.

This new guidance should ideally be adopted as formal national policy which all plan
making and planning applications must follow. Development viability calculations and
associated reports submitted as part of planning application negotiations should also
be made publicly available in the interest of transparency and to enable research to

10
Tudalen y pecyn 54



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

be conducted on the assumptions embedded within them and how these may be
impacting affordable housing delivery.

However, given that there is a finite amount of development value to cover all costs
of development, including developer profit and the cost of land (reflecting financial
returns to landowners over and above existing use value), there is a limit to the
degree private sector-led schemes will be willing contribute to affordable housing via
land value capture tools. The real opportunity to significantly scale up the number of
additional affordable housing via the planning and development process is therefore
for RSLs and local authorities (and other public sector authorities) to be enabled to
play an even larger role.

Assuming these entities can secure land (or use more existing public sector land)
they are in theory in a position to deliver significantly higher proportions of affordable
housing on sites than will be delivered via private sector led developments,
regardless of adjustments made to development viability planning guidance. This
would also assist in enabling local authorities to deploy their accumulated unspent
financial contributions for affordable housing.

This suggests that the public sector should take a more active role in releasing its
own land for affordable housing development and assembling development sites for
affordable housing. Indeed, the Independent Review of Affordable Housing Supply
(Pammet et al., 2019: 7) recommended that the Welsh Government should establish
an arms-length body to “act as a hub for public sector land management and
professional services”.'® Furthermore, the recent Competition and Markets Authority
report on housebuilding (Wales summary) suggested that: “The Welsh Government
could therefore look to increase their delivery of publicly-funded housing by local
authorities or housing associations” (CMA, 2024: 20).

However, a key barrier to the public sector or RSLs acquiring new land is the price
expectations of landowners and the fact that new development sites may need to be
sourced in competition with private developers. The Levelling Up and Regeneration
Act (2023) introduced powers to enable acquiring authorities to compulsorily
purchase land at prices that do not reflect hope value (i.e. the prospect of securing
planning permission for a more valuable development) in some circumstances,
including where the development is for affordable housing.

Although these powers are not yet used in Wales, they could present an opportunity,
although the circumstances in which they can be deployed are very limited.
Furthermore, compulsory purchase can be a highly adversarial, slow and costly
process. Nevertheless, adjustments made to the compulsory purchase regime to
enable land to be acquired at prices that would enable the supply of more affordable
housing could serve as a fall-back position in negotiations with landowners and
could, in time, influence land prices.

At the heart of land value capture is the long-recognised injustice of individual
landowners benefitting from extraordinary windfall gains merely as a result of owning

6 The government’s support for Unnos and the delivery ambitions of the government’s Land Division
are a step in the right direction.

11
Tudalen y pecyn 55



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

land that increases in value as a result of state decisions and the efforts of the wider
community (George, [1879] 1935)."” Furthermore, there is a fundamental
contradiction between land owned privately as a financial asset, the expectations of
private landowners of financial windfalls, speculative private sector-led housing
development and the provision of adequate numbers of new affordable homes under
the current model.

Therefore, however it is achieved, the overarching policy objective should be to
regulate the financial returns extracted from land and the development process to
enable more public benefits to be delivered via development and to facilitate the
delivery of public-sector or RSL-led development schemes that are best placed to
increase the supply of affordable housing.

References

Arcadis (2018). Longitudinal viability study of the planning process: Final report.
Welsh Government, February 2018. Available at: https://www.gov.wales/viability-
study-planning-process

CMA (Competition and Markets Authority). (2024). Summary of CMA market study
final report into housebuilding: Wales summary. 26 February 2024. Available at:
https://www.gov.uk/cma-cases/housebuilding-market-study

Crosby, N. (2018). Development viability assessment and the provision of affordable
housing. A game of “pass the parcel”? Town Planning Review, 90 (4). pp. 407-428.
Available at: https://www.liverpooluniversitypress.co.uk/doi/10.3828/tpr.2019.27

Crosby, N. and Wyatt, P. (2016) Financial viability appraisals for site-specific
planning decisions in England. Environment and Planning C: Government and
Policy, 34 (8). pp. 1716-1733. Available at:
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/0263774X16636118

Crosby, N. and Wyatt, P. (2019) What is a ‘competitive return’ to a landowner?
Parkhurst Road and the new UK planning policy environment. Journal of Property
Research, 36 (4). pp. 367-386. Available at:
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/09599916.2019.1690028

George, H. ([1879] 1935). Progress and poverty 50th anniversary edition (New York:
Robert Schalkenbach Foundation). Available at:
https://archive.org/details/in.ernet.dli.2015.514173

Grayston, R. (2017). Slipping through the loophole: How viability assessments are
reducing affordable housing supply in England. Shelter, November 2017. Available
at:

https://england.shelter.org.uk/professional resources/policy and research/policy lib
rary/report slipping through the loophole how viability assessments are reducin
q affordable housing supply in england

7 It is, of course, no less of an injustice that individual homeowners should benefit from extraordinary
windfall gains merely as a result of owning a home that goes up in value through no effort of their
own.

12
Tudalen y pecyn 56



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

ap Gwilym, R., Jones, E., and Rogers, H. (2020). A technical assessment of the
potential for a local land value tax in Wales. Government Social Research and
Bangor University, Social Research Number 17/2020. Available at:
https://www.gov.wales/local-land-value-tax-technical-assessment

HBF (Home Builders Federation) (2023). Section 106 agreements and unspent
developer contributions in England and Wales. September 2023. Available at:
https://www.hbf.co.uk/news/section-106-report/

McAllister, P. (2017) The calculative turn in land value capture: lessons from the
English planning system. Land Use Policy, 63. pp. 122-129. Available at:
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0264837716301983?via%3Dihub

McAllister, P., Street, E. and Wyatt, P. (2016) Governing calculative practices: An
investigation of development viability modelling in the English planning system.
Urban Studies, 53 (11). pp. 2363-2379. Available at:
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/0042098015589722

Pammett, L., Collins, H., Jenkins, P., Morgan., K., Williams, P., and Willmott. (2019).
Independent review of affordable housing supply: Final report. April 2019. Available
at: https://www.gov.wales/independent-review-affordable-housing-supply-report

Sayce, S., Crosby, N., Garside, P., Harris, R. and Parsa, A. (2017). Viability and the
Planning System: The Relationship between Economic Viability Testing, Land Values
and Affordable Housing in London. Research Report for the London Boroughs of
Barking and Dagenham, Brent, Camden, Croydon, Enfield, Greenwich, Islington,
Lambeth, Merton, Newham, Southwark, Tower Hamlets and Waltham Forest. Royal
Agricultural University: Cirencester. Available at: https://s3-eu-west-
1.amazonaws.com/assets.henley.ac.uk/legacyUploads/pdf/schools/rep/Viability and
the Planning System Research January 2017.pdf

Thompson, G. (2020). Research into stalled sites in Wales: Final report. Arcadis,
March 2020. Available at: https://www.gov.wales/research-stalled-sites-wales

Williams, G., Ahsby-Ridgway, H., and Evans, A. (n.d.). Affordable housing in Wales:
Does more of less really mean more? Lichfields. Available at:
https://lichfields.uk/affordable-housing-in-wales-draft

Welsh Government. (2023). Affordable housing provision: April 2022 to March 2023.
7 November 2023. Available at: https://www.gov.wales/affordable-housing-provision-
april-2022-march-2023-html

13
Tudalen y pecyn 57



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Appendix A: Available Statistical Data on the Supply of Affordable Housing in
Wales

Supply of affordable housing in Wales

Figure 1 shows additional affordable housing provision in Wales since 2008
(including shared equity homes)."® It shows that Registered Social Landlords (RSLs)
consistently deliver the vast majority of such housing in Wales, having accounted for
between 80%-90% per year between 2018 — 2022 (with a drop to 70% in 2023). The
proportion of new affordable housing delivered by local authorities (LAs) has been
steadily increasing and has accounted for between 8%-20% per year since 2018 .
‘Other providers’ (including private developers) have accounted for by far the
smallest proportion at 2%-3% per year between 2018 and 2022 (with an increase to
9% in 2023).

Figure 1: Additional affordable housing provision by provider and
year in Wales, 2008 - 2023

4000
3500
3000
2500

2000
1500
1000
500
O_I .-._I-I_I_.-- -I-._I-I-I-II
Q

P P
mmmm Local Authorities mmmm Registered Social Landlords
mmmm Other providers = Total affordable housing

Notes: StatsWales “Additional affordable housing provision by provider and year” (HOUS0311). Note that these
data include shared equity homes which are outside of the definition of social housing adopted for this response
to the Committee’s call for evidence. However, this level of detail is available for RSLs only via StatsWales
dataset HOUS0312. This shows that over the last five years, shared equity has accounted for between 4%-5% of
total additional affordable homes delivered by RSLs.

Supply of affordable housing in Wales by tenure (RSLs only)

Unfortunately, the data in Figure 1 do not segment by tenure. However, these data
are available for RSLs (see Figure 2). These show that social rented homes account
for the majority of new affordable homes delivered by RSLs each year'®, comprising
between 71%-84% since 2015. In the same period, intermediate rent has comprised
between 8%-20%, shared equity between 4%-9% and shared ownership between

8 These data include new build schemes as well as the purchase, leasing or conversion of existing units.
® These data include new build schemes as well as the purchase, leasing or conversion of existing units.

14
Tudalen y pecyn 58



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

2%-6% (see notes to Figure 2). Although these data only apply to affordable homes
delivered by RSLs, given RSLs have delivered the largest proportion of such homes
since data have been available, they provide an indication of overall trends,
suggesting that social rented tenure dominates new supply (unlike in England, where
it has been gradually eroded). However, on private sector-led schemes where a
proportion of affordable homes are secured via planning obligations, social rented
tenure is unlikely to account for the majority.

Figure 2: Additional affordable housing provision by RSLs by tenure in
Wales, 2007 - 2023

3500
3000
2500
2000

1500

1000
’ I | |
0 II II ] | -I Il Il II [ Il II In M Il- Il- Ban Mlmn
 ® N XA D> % O AR L i

/\ ’ Cb/ O_)' Q/ N q; (b/ b‘/ (/J/ Q)' /\ . Cb/ q)/ Q/ N’
O Q Q N N N N N N N N N N QO a9
S S S S S 3 S

o

o
v
"],Q

I Social Rented mmmm Intermediate Rented I Shared Equity I Shared Ownership es=TOTAL

Notes: StatsWales “Additional affordable housing provision by registered social landlords only, by location,
tenure and funding” (HOUS0312). Shared ownership Wales was introduced in February 2018. Prior to this,
shared ownership housing may have been included under ‘shared equity’.

Supply of affordable housing via planning obligations

Figure 3 shows new affordable homes provided through planning obligations as a
proportion of new affordable housing. This shows that planning obligations have
accounted for between 23-30% of new affordable housing over the last five years
(reaching closer to 35% prior to this). These data include all homes delivered via
planning obligations, including those by RSLs and local authorities (as well as private
developers). The number of affordable homes granted permission via planning
obligations are consistently higher than those delivered (see Figure 4). This could
reflect the general time lag of development, as well as sites that are stalled due to
viability issues.

15
Tudalen y pecyn 59



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Figure 3: New affordable homes provided through planning
obligations as a proportion of new affordable housing, Wales 2008-
2023

40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

mmmm Additional affordable housing
mmmm New affordable homes provided through planning obligations

= New affordable homes provided through planning obligations as %

Notes: StatsWales “Provision of affordable housing through planning obligations and on exception sites by
authority, measure and planning type” (HOUS0313) combined with “Additional affordable housing provision by
provider and year” (HOUS0311).

Figure 4: New affordable housing units granted permission and
delivered via planning obligations Wales, 2007 - 2023

3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000
11103 000481
, I I h
ISEIRS Y SR GV G I S AR R S AR L
i A R

B New affordable homes consented through planning obligations

H New affordable homes provided through planning obligations

Notes: StatsWales “Provision of affordable housing through planning obligations and on exception sites by
authority, measure and planning type” (HOUS0313).

Data on proportion of affordable housing provided via planning obligations by private
developers

Although the data on planning obligations do not segment by type of provider, the
‘other providers’ data in Figure 1 include additional affordable housing delivered by

16
Tudalen y pecyn 60



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

private developers via planning obligations.?’ These data can be compared with data
on new dwellings completed by private enterprise in order to arrive at a very rough
indication of the number of affordable homes provided by private developers via
planning obligations as a percentage of overall new homes delivered by private
developers.?! Figure 5 shows that this has consistently been around 2%-3% in the
period 2015-2022, although rose to around 7% in 2022-23. However, these data
should be read in conjunction with those in Figure 6 below (financial contributions
towards affordable housing) to get an overall rough indication of the developer
contributions for affordable housing being made.??

Furthermore, it must be emphasised that the data in Figure 5 are only a rough
indication because the ‘other providers’ data are an aggregate for all providers other
than RSLs and local authorities and so could include providers other than purely
private enterprise. Also, the new dwellings completed by private enterprise data are
likely to include homes provided on sites where no planning obligation was required
e.g. on small sites below the density threshold that triggers the requirement for
affordable housing. In addition, StatsWales warns that the tenure data for new
dwellings should be treated with caution (see note to Figure 5).

The data in Figure 5 should not therefore be taken as entirely precise. However,
these are the best data we have at aggregate level regarding approximate
proportions and trends in the affordable housing provided on private developer-led
schemes. Further research is needed to determine actual total overall annual levels
of affordable housing being delivered by private developers via planning obligations.

The affordable housing requirements set by (and within) different local council areas
vary significantly (e.g. they can vary between, say, 10% in some parts of Swansea
and Conwy, 15% in some parts of Flintshire, 20%-30% in Cardiff, 35% in some parts
of Conwy, 40% in some parts of Flintshire and 50% in some parts of The Gower).
This reflects differences in local market conditions and property values. Therefore,
despite the caveats for the data shown in Figure 5, the data do suggest that private
developers may be consistently delivering affordable housing contributions towards
the lower end of this range. However, these data do not take account of other
financial contributions to mitigate the impact of development via planning obligations
or CIL that may be made by private developers in addition to those specifically for
affordable housing.

20 The government’s 2023 release states: “The remaining 318 units (9%) were delivered by other
providers and included additional affordable housing units delivered directly by private developers
through the planning system via Section 106 agreement” (Welsh Government, 2023).

21 |t is here assumed that the new dwellings completed by private enterprise data include affordable
homes delivered as part of planning obligations. However, if such homes are, in fact, not included in
these data (and are reflected in the numbers for RSLs) then this would mean that the rough estimates
of the number of affordable homes provided by private developers via planning obligations as a
percentage of overall new homes delivered by private developers is even lower than suggested
above.

22 |deally, these financial contributions data would be converted to an approximate number homes, but
this is challenging given the range of methodologies and data used by local authorities to calculate
commuted sums.

17
Tudalen y pecyn 61



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Figure 5: Additional affordable housing from 'other providers' as a
proportion of new dwellings completed by private enterprise, Wales
2008 - 2023

7000 12%

6000 10%

5000 8%
4000

3000

6%

0,
2000 4%

1000 2%

0%

I Additional affordable housing from 'other providers'

mmmm New dwellings completed by private enterprise

= Percentage

Notes: StatsWales “New dwellings completed by period and tenure” (HOUS0702) and “Additional affordable
housing provision by provider and year” (HOUS0311). Note that the affordable housing data include shared
equity. The summary information accompanying the HOUS0702 data states: “Figures on housing completions
are from records kept for building control purposes. It is sometimes difficult for building control officers and NHBC
to identify the intended final tenure of the property (the basis for the tenure information). This may lead to an
under-count of social sector new house building and an over-count for the private sector. Within the social sector
it may also lead to an under-count of local authority new house building and an over count for the RSL sector.
Therefore the tenure data should be treated with caution.”

Data on financial contributions towards affordable housing made via planning
obligations

The data on the financial contributions made towards affordable housing by
developers in the form of planning obligations show that local council spending on
the provision of affordable housing has not kept pace with this income (see Figure
6). This has resulted in a growing running total of such funds that reached around
£27 million in 2022-23. Although there may be potential to increase financial income
from land value capture mechanisms to invest in affordable housing, a more
pressing issue appears to be difficulty in spending existing income. As research by
the Home Builders Federation has shown, this is a significant issue in England as
well (HBF, 2023).

There is no research of which the author is aware that systematically investigates the
reasons for this. However, one important potential explanation for the accumulation
of unspent funds could be difficulties in securing land for the provision of new
affordable housing (due to the price expectations of private landowners) and
engaging with suitable partners for delivery, combined with difficulties in securing
existing properties for tenure conversion.

18
Tudalen y pecyn 62



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Figure 6: Financial contributions towards affordable housing via
planning obligations in Wales (£millions), 2007 - 2023

30.000
25.000
20.000
15.000
10.000

5.000

0.000
SR S T L R S T TP TP )
F & ¥ Y W G o

S ] ; v
$ S
PSS S S S S S S

v

e Held at start of year e===Received duringyear e=mmSpentduringyear e==Yearend total

Notes: StatsWales “Financial contributions towards affordable housing via planning obligations by local authority
and amount” (HOUS0314). Shows the amount and changes to developer financial contributions received by
planning authorities in each year towards the provision of affordable housing via planning obligations.

Public sector land

Although local authorities appear to be finding it challenging to spend financial
contributions made by developers towards the provision of affordable housing,
Figure 7 suggests that councils are increasingly making land available for the
provision of such homes through new build schemes or through the purchase,
leasing or conversion of existing units. The data show that public sector land is
making a growing contribution towards the provision of additional affordable housing,
with a particularly marked increase since 2020.

19
Tudalen y pecyn 63



Dr Edward Shepherd 19 April 2024

Figure 7: Additional affordable housing provided on on land made
available by the public sector in the last five years in Wales, 2009 -
2023

45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

mmm Additional affordable housing
I Additional affordable housing provided on public sector land

== Additional affordable housing provided on public sector land as %

Notes: StatsWales “Additional affordable housing provision by provider and year” (HOUS0311) and ‘Provision of
affordable housing on land made available in last 5 years by location and period’ (HOUS0315). Note that these
data include shared equity homes which are outside of the definition of social housing adopted for this response
to the Committee’s call for evidence.

20
Tudalen y pecyn 64



Papur 3 / Paper 3

Eitem 3

Senedd Housing and Local SEFYDLIAD g7

Government Committee bevan

Inquiry into Social Housing Supply FOUNDATION

The Bevan Foundation is Wales’ most influential think-tank. We create insights, ideas and
impact that help to end poverty and inequality. We are grateful for the opportunity to submit
written evidence to the Housing and Local Government Committee’s inquiry into the
supply of social housing.

We have just begun new housing research activities which directly relate to this inquiry. We
will be exploring many of the same areas of concern and look forward to updating Senedd
Members and the Welsh Government on our findings as we move forward.

Working with Shelter Cymru and the Lloyds Bank Foundation, we will be looking at how we
can get people moved on from temporary accommodation by providing more social
homes. We will be capturing the experiences of those living in temporary accommodation
and considering the broad spectrum of policy directives which are at play, from the
availability of land opportunities for development, the planning system, the use of existing
buildings and the process for allocating social housing.

In a partnership with Housing Justice Cymru and Cwmpas, supported by the Nationwide
Foundation, we will be looking more closely at land supply. Our research will look at the
potential of land held by different types of social and public owners for the development
of social and community-led housing and the barriers preventing this from being done at
scale.

Our response addresses each of the terms of reference set out in the consultation
document in turn. At this early stage in our research, we reflect on what is known already
and where we intend to provide further insight. Our key messages for the inquiry are as
follows:

e A more tightly focused target, concentrating delivery on homes to be let at a social
rent, is needed to address the blockages in our housing system.

o We need greater insight into how many homes are being removed from the social
housing stock as additional homes are only part of the story.

e The 20,000 homes delivery target needs to be reviewed and increased due to the
cost of living and ongoing housing crisis.

e Welsh Government need to consider alternative approaches to understanding
housing need rather than relying on social housing registers.

e For many social landlords, investing in their stock to reach the required standards
will need to become their priority. Delivery rates of additional homes are expected
to fall as a result.

o The development of affordable, subsidised homes needs subsidy,

Tudalen y pecyn 65



e |tis simply not practical, let alone ethical, to rely on social rent payments by some
of the poorest people in Welsh society to fund the development of new homes.

e There is a lack of joined-up working across the public sector which is preventing
social housing delivery at scale.

e We need to explore opportunities for compulsory purchase powers at both a
national and community level rather than relying upon action by local authorities.

e The creation of any new funding streams for affordable housing is to be applauded;
but we must ensure that there are mechanisms to enable, encourage and monitor
spend to get additional homes into the system, rather than more money just sitting
in bank accounts.

o The delivery target for social homes focuses on “new” rather than “additional” units,
reinforcing the perception that the answer to increasing supply is primarily in newly
built properties.

e The purchase of existing private sector properties to increase the social housing
stock provides an opportunity to make improvements within the wider housing
stock.

o We need a conversation about what can be achieved through the existing privately
owned housing stock to provide what is needed most now, and where flexibility and
compromise can allow for retrofitting to meet standards later.

e For community groups looking to develop affordable homes themselves, a lack of
funding and difficulty in securing land are the greatest barriers.

o We need to explore areas of policy development which strengthen the opportunities
for community-led action.

Welsh Government recognise the need for more social homes, but the reality of delivery
is slow when compared to the 20,000 homes target between 2021 and 2026.

Data for 2021/22 and 2022/23 reports! that in the first 2 years of the target period, we
saw only 5,775 homes delivered for the social rented sector, averaging 2,888 per year.
The target calls for 4,000 per year. It's important to remember that this figure includes
intermediate rentals and shared ownership. We estimate that only 4,780 of the homes
delivered over the two years were to be let at a social rent.

The Bevan Foundation'’s housing research will focus primarily on homes for social rent.
For the 11,501 individuals living in temporary accommodation at the end of January

1 Affordable housing provision: April 2022 to March 2023 | GOV.WALES

Tudalen y pecyn 66


https://www.gov.wales/affordable-housing-provision-april-2022-march-2023-html

20242, the key to a social home would be life-changing. It is only this tenure that can
provide a truly affordable, secure and sustainable housing option.

A more tightly focused target, concentrating delivery on homes to be let at a social
rent, is needed to address the blockages in our housing system which can be seen
in hotel rooms across the country.

Other respondents may argue that the intermediate rental option should also continue
to be prioritised as it requires less capital funding support (25% grant rather than 58%)
therefore enabling more units to be delivered/supported. We have some concerns
about the affordability of this tenure and its ability to alleviate pressures for low-income
households in our current housing system.

In a report from the Centre for Social Justice® focused on the equivalent tenure of
affordable rent in England, it was acknowledged that “in areas where private rents are
high — such as urban centres and the capital — the homes delivered under the system
of "Affordable Rent” often fail to live up to their name”. Polling for this report indicated
that over 60% of the public were more supportive of building social homes that are let
at lower rents even if that means fewer are built.

The Welsh Government delivery target covers all additional affordable housing units,
whether through new build, purchase, acquisition, leasing or conversion of existing
dwellings. It does not take account of any loss of affordable housing stock through
demolitions or sales during the year. Looking at other Welsh Government datasets?, the
total social housing stock across Wales (housing association and local authority) on 31
March 22 was 237,373 homes, increasing to 238,966 on 31 March 23. This shows a
reality of only 1,593 additional homes. The total stock at social rent® has increased by
13,227 over the last 10 years (2013-2023), so averaging 1,322 homes per year. In
contrast, over thirty years between the mid-1940s and the mid-1970s, an average of
around 8,000 new social homes were built every year in Wales®.

We thankfully do not have the Right to Buy reducing the social housing stock in Wales
as it still does in England. However, there needs to be greater recognition that some
homes are still removed from the available stock each year for a variety of other reasons.
For example, we are aware of social housing regeneration schemes which through
demolition or the remodelling of the stock, lead to a reduction in unit numbers. We
have also heard that individual homes may be sold if they cannot be brought up to the
Welsh Housing Quality Standard.

We need greater insight into how many homes are actually being removed from the
stock of social landlords, as additional homes into the system are only part of the
story.

The 20,000 homes target was based on pre-pandemic housing need data, before our
cost of living crisis took hold and when our housing system was more stable and

2 Homelessness accommodation provision and rough sleeping: January 2024 | GOV.WALES

3 Living Rent that Works (nationwidefoundation.org.uk)

4 Total social housing stock by local authority area and provider type (gov.wales)

5 Total social housing stock by local authority area and provider type (gov.wales)

6 Building social housing: can the Welsh Government do more? (senedd.wales)

Tudalen y pecyn 67


https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/datasets/ukhousebuildingpermanentdwellingsstartedandcompleted
https://www.gov.wales/homelessness-accommodation-provision-and-rough-sleeping-january-2024-html
https://nationwidefoundation.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/CSJ-Living-Rent-Report-Final.pdf
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Social-Housing-Stock-and-Rents/totalsocialhousingstock-by-area-providertype
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Social-Housing-Stock-and-Rents/totalsocialhousingstock-by-area-providertype
https://research.senedd.wales/research-articles/building-social-housing-can-the-welsh-government-do-more/

accessible to those on lower incomes. Today, we have more than double the number
of people living in temporary accommodation now than in December 2020.

The Bevan Foundation’s snapshot of poverty surveys have shown that a consistently
high proportion of the Welsh population feel the threat of becoming homeless. In the
most recent survey’, 14% of people reported that they were worried about being evicted
or having their home repossessed in the three months from January 2024.

The deepening issue of housing affordability and availability means that the delivery
target now needs to be reviewed and increased. If it does continue to be used as an
operational target, it should be clearly recognised that it will only go some way
towards addressing current housing need levels across Wales.

We have also begun to consider how we accurately quantify housing need. Our early
conversations with those working with the new Local Housing Market Assessment
(LHMA) model have highlighted concerns about the background calculations and worry
that the results “vastly underestimate need”. We have also heard concerns about the
cost and resource implications of this work being carried out at an individual local
authority level and issues of consistency.

Recent research is also questioning the validity of housing register data as a measure of
need, a key component of the LHMA model. In their 2021 report People in Housing
Need, the National Housing Federation (NHF) recognise that ‘“registers are generally felt
to be inadequate as a measure of housing need....as the data on these registers is not
necessarily reviewed for accuracy on a regular basis (and) it's very difficult to arrive at a
robust national figure. While local registers do serve an important administrative
function, they don't give us the full picture of how many people are in need of a home.”

It is widely accepted that housing need will be underrepresented on housing registers
if there is no accommodation for households to apply for. It is commonplace for there
to be no one on the register for communities which have no existing social homes -
this doesn't necessarily mean that there are no households in housing need. In these
circumstances, housing need surveys are invaluable. We do wonder if there will now be
a wider picture of unregistered need as households question the point of applying for
the scarce resource of social housing more generally.

Academic researchers such as Professor Glen Bramley of Heriot-Watt University are
demonstrating how other data sources can be used to quantify need levels. In the NHF
research, Bramley makes use of the Understanding Society Household Longitudinal
Study® - which we understand receives financial support from the Welsh Government
- alongside contextual market data to quantify housing need levels in terms of
concealed households, overcrowding, affordability, suitability and external conditions.

We would like to see the Welsh Government considering alternative approaches to
understanding housing need across Wales, the use of data sources such as
Understanding Society, as well as a regular Census style, pan-Wales Housing Need
Survey.

7 A snapshot of poverty in winter 2024 - Bevan Foundation
8 Understanding Society — The UK Household Longitudinal Study

Tudalen y pecyn 68


https://www.bevanfoundation.org/resources/a-snapshot-of-poverty-winter-2024/
https://www.understandingsociety.ac.uk/

The aim of the Bevan Foundation’'s new housing research is to explore the challenges
of increasing social housing supply and to develop innovative, deliverable solutions. We
plan to do this through conversations and close working with a range of social
landlords. Community Housing Cymru have already done work in this area with their
January 2024 briefing® highlighting some of the key barriers to development:

e Planning and consenting systems - a lack of joined-up working amongst
stakeholders involved in the process and issues around staffing capacity.
e Sector competition, land, contractors and suppliers — competition from

construction projects both inside and outside the sector leads to difficulty in
securing land and contractors as well as increased material costs.

e Phosphates — the Natural Resources Wales guidance on phosphates has led to
significant delays in affected areas.

Many of these challenges are reflected elsewhere in the terms of reference for this
inquiry.

Social landlords currently face a difficult financial balancing act. Do they improve their
existing stock to meet the new Welsh Housing Quality Standard and decarbonisation
targets or add to their stock through new development? Do they have the financial
capacity to do both?

For many social landlords, investing in their stock will have to be their priority and
delivery rates of additional homes are expected to fall as a result.

At the Bevan Foundation, we recognise that the challenges will vary for different types
of landlords. Local authorities and large-scale voluntary transfer (LSVT) associations will
have significantly older housing stock in need of greater investment. We plan to explore
the ongoing appetite for development across the whole sector.

We understand that housing standards and decarbonisation can also affect decisions
about bringing existing homes into the stock, with development teams quite
understandably thinking about the practicalities of bringing older properties up to the
required standard. We'll discuss this further in our response to point 8, below.

Whilst this inquiry is focusing on the challenges of delivering social homes in this
response, we should not forget that we are in a fortunate position in Wales to still have
significant capital funding support through the social housing grant programme.

To put it simply, the development of affordable, subsidised homes needs subsidy,

9 Jan 2024 - Barriers to social housing development (chcymru.org.uk)

Tudalen y pecyn 69


https://chcymru.org.uk/cms-assets/documents/members-only/MO_Briefing_Barriers-to-social-housing-development_300124.pdf

Elsewhere in the UK, England has seen the lowest levels of affordable housing delivery
which can be attributed to a relative underinvestment. Scotland has also recently seen
significant cuts to its historically high funding programme

It is good to see the Welsh Government’s continuing and growing its commitment to
provide support delivery with social housing grant with budget levels increasing from
£250 million in the first year of the new programme (2021/22) to an indicative £365
million for 2024/25. However, development is also dependent on significant private
finance which, in general, is sourced and serviced by individual landlords through their
rental income.

As the Bevan Foundation commented in October 2023, at the time of the last social
rent settlement, the policy context surrounding it is a thorny issue. On the one hand, if
the Welsh Government does not allow social landlords to increase rents, this impacts
on their ability to build new social housing, maintain homes, and invest in
decarbonisation measures. On the other hand, significant rent increases place financial
pressure on low-income tenants.

Our view is that it is simply not practical, let alone ethical, to rely on social rent
payments by some of the poorest people in Welsh society to fund the development
of new homes.

At the Bevan Foundation, we have identified that challenges in the planning system will
be one of the first areas that we consider with our research. We are aiming to engage
with a wide range of professionals involved in the development of social housing to
hear about its impact on increasing supply. A recent report by the Competition and
Markets Authority into housebuilding®® confirmed that uncertainty in the planning
system is a key outcome driver. It suggests that there are three key concerns with the
planning system which are limiting its ability to support the level of housebuilding:

e Lack of predictability.

e Length, cost, and complexity of the planning process.

e Insufficient clarity, consistency and strength of LPA targets, objectives, and

incentives to meet housing need.

Worryingly, Savills latest Welsh housing market and supply update®® reports that whilst
starts on site across the residential sector are improving, planning consents continue
their decline. “This shrinking pipeline of new housing in Wales threatens the future
delivery of homes.”

We're hearing that it is not just the planning process itself which is causing delays.
Statutory consultees across the public sector can cause delays and drive up costs, whilst
other approval processes such as SuDS add further requirements and confusion.

Overall there is a lack of joined-up working across the public sector which is
preventing social housing delivery at scale.

10 UK Housing Review 2024 - J Perry, Housing Expenditure Plans

11 Wales' social rent setting policy is not fit for purpose - Bevan Foundation
12 Wales summary (publishing.service.gov.uk)

13 Savills UK | Welsh Housing Market and Supply Update — April 2024

Tudalen y pecyn 70


https://www.ukhousingreview.org.uk/ukhr24/index.html
https://www.bevanfoundation.org/views/wales-social-rent-setting-policy-is-not-fit-for-purpose/#:~:text=The%20Bevan%20Foundation%27s%20recent%20Snapshot,they%20had%20paid%20their%20rent.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65d8bb1454f1e70011165960/_Wales_summary__.pdf
https://www.savills.co.uk/research_articles/229130/358506-0

A further area that the Bevan Foundation will be exploring in our research is the potential
of land held by different types of social and public owners for the development of social
and community-led housing and the barriers preventing this from being done at scale.

As Community Housing Cymru have reported** that “our members have relayed the
infrequency in which local authority public land comes to the market and with no
preferential treatment for affordable homes.”

The Independent Affordable Housing Supply Review in April 2019 made the following

recommendations which we will be reviewing for progress:

e An arms-length body should be established by the Welsh Government to act as a
hub for public sector land management and professional services. This body should
work alongside individual departments/bodies to provide capacity and resources to
accelerate the development of public land assets and to support greater consistency
and efficiency in managing those assets.

o The Welsh Government should mandate the mapping of all public land and require
owners to publish the development potential for the land they own.

Turning to privately owned land, the Competition and Markets Authority report into
housebuilding concluded that whilst there is “land that is potentially available for
development in most areas” its availability on the market at any time will “depend on
landowners’ assessment as to when and if it makes sense to try to sell.”

Legal action, such as the use of local authority compulsory purchase powers (CPO) can
be used to bring land into public ownership to enable housing development, but their
use is not commonplace. A review of the Register for Compulsory Purchase!® reveals
that only 26 CPOs were made for housing purposes between 2011 and 2021. 14 of these
were to address individual empty properties.

The Affordable Housing Supply Review!” recommended that CPO process should be
streamlined to improve the acquisition of land for housing purposes. It is therefore good
to see that there has been recent consultation'® by the Welsh Government and a
commitment to improve the CPO process to make it fairer, more efficient and
intelligible.

Whilst land assembly activities through CPO are primarily used by local authorities,
we are interested in exploring opportunities for action at both a national and
community level.

In our research we will be considering the benefits of land assembly at a national level,
a role historically fulfilled by the Land Authority for Wales (1976-1999) powers
transferred to the Welsh Development Agency then the Welsh Government. Combined
with new CPO powers under the Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 — where

14 Jan 2024 - Barriers to social housing development (chcymru.org.uk)

15 Independent Review of Affordable Housing Supply launches | GOV.WALES

16 Register of Compulsory Purchase Orders | GOV.WALES

17 Independent Review of Affordable Housing Supply launches | GOV.WALES

18 reforms-to-compulsory-purchase-powers-and-procedures-consultation-document.pdf (gov.wales)
19 evelling-up and Regeneration Act 2023 (legislation.gov.uk)

Tudalen y pecyn 71


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2023/55/part/9/enacted
https://chcymru.org.uk/cms-assets/documents/members-only/MO_Briefing_Barriers-to-social-housing-development_300124.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/independent-review-affordable-housing-supply-launches
https://www.gov.wales/register-compulsory-purchase-orders
https://www.gov.wales/independent-review-affordable-housing-supply-launches
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2020-10/reforms-to-compulsory-purchase-powers-and-procedures-consultation-document.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2023/55/part/9/enacted

land can be CPO-ed more cheaply than hope value where it is in the public interest, we
feel that there are a powerful set of tools at a national level to get social housing delivery
moving at pace.

We also want to look more into the Community Right to Buy (Scotland) and Community
Right to bid (England) models.

Land value capture refers to policies that allow public authorities to recover increases
in land values that result from government actions, including the development of land
and the alteration of land use regulations such as local development plans. As the OECD
recognises®® “changes in land use regulation or the provision of public services by
government often triggers significant increases in the value of land. Making even some
of this additional value available for public investment can greatly help make cities more
liveable and sustainable.”

We've seen the benefits of funding received through planning gain and section 106
agreements to provide funds rather than onsite provision. However, as research? by the
Home Builders Federation has found, much of this potential funding remains unspent.
They estimate that around £112 million of S106 contributions (for all purposes) is likely
to be held by Welsh local authorities, an average of £5.1 million each. Pembrokeshire
County Council also holds the most in unspent affordable housing contributions in
Wales at £4.4 million.

Whilst not part of the planning or development process, taxation of second homes and
empty homes via Council Tax has also successfully created a new funding source for a
growing number of authorities. We're now beginning to see the first homes being
purchased with this money,? but housing associations also report to us that there may
be tensions to come as monies are kept for local authority developments rather than to
support affordable housing development across all partners. Delivery capacity issues
may lead to this funding also remaining unspent.

Whilst the creation of any new funding streams for affordable housing is to be
applauded, these examples highlight the need to ensure that there are mechanisms
in place to enable, encourage and monitor spend to get additional homes into the
system, rather than more money just sitting in bank accounts.

The rising costs of construction are well documented. As the Cabinet Secretary for
Housing, Local Government and Planning herself has commented before the
pandemic, ‘we could get somewhere between five and seven houses for £1 million:

20 Global Compendium of Land Value Capture Policies | en | OECD
21 Section 106 agreements and unspent developer contributions in England and Wales report (hbf.co.uk)
22 Gwynedd council buys Welsh Riviera homes to tackle homelessness - BBC News

Tudalen y pecyn 72


https://www.oecd.org/publications/global-compendium-of-land-value-capture-policies-4f9559ee-en.htm
https://www.hbf.co.uk/news/section-106-report/
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-64711391

now we get four if we're lucky”.? It is accepted that new local carbon technologies will
add to the cost of construction but will be an investment for the future. What wasn't
perhaps predicted was the rise in costs due to supply issues and competition from
elsewhere in the construction market.

Another area where the Bevan Foundation feels that the aspiration for low-carbon
social homes is having a negative impact is in the acquisition of existing homes and
buildings to increase supply.

The delivery target for social homes focuses on “new” rather than “additional” units,
perhaps unintentionally, but wrongly reinforcing the perception that the answer to
increasing supply is primarily in newly built properties.

The Joseph Rowntree Foundation report Making a house a home?** advocates for the
socialisation of the existing housing stock to meet our unmet need for social homes.
The report argues that transactions of existing homes far outweigh the contributions of
new buildings. Of the 20 million privately owned properties in England, around 3% were
built in the last 5 years. Whereas around a quarter (25%) changed hands over the same
period. We imagine that we would see a very similar pattern in Wales. JRF argue that
these transactions present a potential opportunity to intervene in the housing market
and redistribute ownership from the private to the social sector.

The purchase of existing private sector properties to increase the social housing
stock provides an opportunity to make improvements within the wider housing
stock.

Wales has the oldest housing stock in UK and some of the least energy-efficient in
Europe, with the worst examples in private ownership. As ONS data confirms?, energy
efficiency scores are higher in social housing than in any other tenure.

We have also been reading that improving a house instead of building a new one saves
two-thirds of the embodied carbon of an equivalent new house and, on average, saves
18 metric tons of carbon dioxide. For the same embodied carbon budget of one new
house, more than three houses can be improved and made safer?®.

From our initial discussions across the sector, we are already hearing that development
teams are understandably wary of the risks of purchase and conversions and the costs
required to meet WHQS and decarbonisation standards, or even whether the property
is capable of reaching those standards.

We appreciate that the Transitional Accommodation Capital programme was primarily
aimed at working with existing properties, but are under the impression that, to date,
this has mainly supported housing associations to fast track long-term voids within their
own stock.

23 'How will Santa find me?' asks one of the 3,400 children living in temporary accommodation in Wales
(nation.cymru)

24 Making a house a home: Why policy must focus on the ownership and distribution of housing | Joseph
Rowntree Foundation (jrf.org.uk)

25 Enerqy efficiency of housing in England and Wales - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk)

26 https://embodiedcarbon.climateresilienthousing.org/downloads/Build-Change-Carbon-Executive-
Summary-compressed.pdf

Tudalen y pecyn 73


https://nation.cymru/news/how-will-santa-find-me-asks-one-of-the-3400-children-living-in-temporary-accommodation-in-wales/
https://nation.cymru/news/how-will-santa-find-me-asks-one-of-the-3400-children-living-in-temporary-accommodation-in-wales/
https://www.jrf.org.uk/housing/making-a-house-a-home-why-policy-must-focus-on-the-ownership-and-distribution-of-housing
https://www.jrf.org.uk/housing/making-a-house-a-home-why-policy-must-focus-on-the-ownership-and-distribution-of-housing
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/articles/energyefficiencyofhousinginenglandandwales/2023
https://embodiedcarbon.climateresilienthousing.org/downloads/Build-Change-Carbon-Executive-Summary-compressed.pdf
https://embodiedcarbon.climateresilienthousing.org/downloads/Build-Change-Carbon-Executive-Summary-compressed.pdf

Our project partners, Housing Justice have been telling us that it is becoming more
difficult to take forward development schemes , which they have identified through
their Faith in Affordable Housing project, due to rising costs and increased risk. We will
be working with them to follow a number of case study sites to document the
challenges and look creatively at what changes in the system would unlock the
potential for them to provide social homes.

We need a conversation about what can be achieved through the existing privately
owned housing stock to provide what is needed most now, and where flexibility and
compromise can allow for retrofitting to meet standards later.

Effective community engagement has an important role to play in identifying needs and
opportunities for social housing development as well as ensuring that developments
are accepted and become integral to the existing community.

The Tyfu Tai report, Housing Need and Desirability?’, reflects upon the current

opportunities to involve local communities in assessing housing need and delivery of

social housing developments. The report's recommendations include:

e Communities need to be involved in the calculations of housing need to ensure the
right homes are built in the right place.

e Work is needed to eradicate stigma around existing and proposed new social
housing developments.

e Further work is needed to understand what is important to existing and future
tenants in terms of where and how social housing is delivered.

e Community engagement should be a key part of the social housing grant process.

For community groups looking to develop affordable homes themselves, a lack of
funding and difficulty in securing land are the greatest barriers.

As Cwmpas also highlights in their report, Community ownership of local assets?®® “the
conversation about land ownership and community access to and ownership of land is
a relatively underdeveloped one in post-devolution Wales. Elsewhere within the UK,
there exist policies that enable the transfer of land and assets into community
ownership which could set useful precedents for Welsh approaches”. The Building
Communities Trust adds® to this by saying that Welsh community groups had lower
levels of awareness of community ownership options than those in Scotland and
England, where formal policies of the Community Right to Buy (Scotland) and
Community Right to Bid (England) models are in place.

We're excited to be partnering with Cwmpas for some of our new research work and
to be in a position to explore community engagement and ownership models further.

In particular we are interested in exploring areas of policy development which
strengthen the opportunities for community-led action.

27 0512-ttc-report-housing-need-and-desirability-eng-v3.pdf (cih.org)
28 Community ownership of local assets - Cwmpas
29 [Eng] Executive summary - Community Ownership: A Way Forward for Wales (squarespace.com)

Tudalen y pecyn 74


https://www.cih.org/media/542debxr/0512-ttc-report-housing-need-and-desirability-eng-v3.pdf
https://cwmpas.coop/what-we-do/policy-publications/community-ownership-land-and-assets/
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/62554a379dc7e96b0ee4c256/t/65cf2d7bb9410901b81c4980/1708076411487/%5BEng%5D+v2+Executive+summary+-+Community+Ownership+A+Way+Forward+for+Wales.pdf

If you would like to find about more about our new housing research projects please
visit our website -www.bevanfoundation.org/current-projects/

Our Senior Policy and Research Officer, Wendy Dearden can also be contacted
about this work by email - wendy.dearden@bevanfoundation.org

Tudalen y pecyn 75


https://bevanfoundation.sharepoint.com/sites/Projects/Shared%20Documents/Housing%20and%20Homelessness/Increasing%20the%20supply%20of%20housing/Social%20Housing%20Supply%20Inquiry/www.bevanfoundation.org/current-projects/
mailto:wendy.dearden@bevanfoundation.org

CARTREF YW POPETH A

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&H}ER

Shelter Cymru response to the Local
Government and Housing Committee
inquiry into social housing supply

April 2024

Contents

ADOUE Shelter CYMIUL........co.oiiiiiii ettt et st st st beesbeesaeesneesnnean 2
FUBUP@ WOTK ...ttt 2
OVEIVIEW ...ttt sttt ettt s bbbt b et et e e e st e st e bt e bt e bt e b e nb et et e b et e st eaeeneebenbeebentens 2
Response to terms of FeferenCe ...........cocoooiiiiiiii e 8

Progress towards meeting the target of 20,000 low carbon social homes for rent; and the
extent to which current and projected levels of social housebuilding are likely to meet

o Lo TW TS T N a1 1= o ISR 8
The challenges faced by social landlords in inCreasing SUPPIY...ccceeeereeceereeseeseeseeseeeeeeeens 11
How housing standards and decarbonisation affect the delivery of new social housing ........ 12

The opportunities and risks in increasing government borrowing and institutional investment

.......................................................................................................................................................... 13
How effectively the planning system is supporting social housebuilding........cccceveeveeneennnnns 15
How to improve the strategic management of public and private land for social

housebuilding, including COmMpPUISOrY PUrCR@SE....cccviiiiiiieiec e e 15

The potential for increasing income from land value capture mechanisms to invest in social
L0 LU= T RS SRRU 18

The Welsh construction sector’s capacity to build new low-carbon social homes; the
potential for acquisitions of existing homes and remodelling of existing buildings................. 20

How local communities can be effectively engaged in social housing developments in their

1
Tudalen y pecyn 76



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

About Shelter Cymru

Shelter Cymru exists to defend the right to a safe home, because home is everything. We help
thousands of people across all of Wales every year who have been affected by the housing
emergency by offering free, confidential, and independent advice. When necessary, we
constructively challenge on behalf of people to ensure that they are properly assisted and to

improve practice and learning.

We work with people who use our services as equals. We provide information, advice, and
support to help people identify the best options to prevent homelessness, to find and keep a

home and to help them take back control of their own lives.

We fight the devastating impact the housing emergency has on our people and communities with

campaigning, advice, and support - and we never give up.

Future Work

We have recently begun new research activities which relate to this inquiry. We will be exploring
many of the same areas of concern and look forward to updating Senedd Members and Welsh

Government on our findings as we move forward.

Working with the Bevan Foundation, we will be highlighting the human cost of our housing
emergency and the shortage of social homes. We will be capturing the experiences of those
living in temporary accommodation and considering the broad spectrum of policy directives

which are at play. This work is kindly supported by funding from the Lloyds Bank Foundation.

Overview
A vision for home and ending homelessness

Shelter Cymru welcomes the opportunity to provide evidence to this inquiry.

Increasing the supply of social homes, and in particular, homes for social rent sits at the very
heart of tackling the housing emergency we face. Unlike other tenures social rent homes offer

affordability and security by design - not just by accident.

Without an adequate number of social homes, it will never be possible to ensure that everyone

in Wales has access to asafe, secure, suitable, and affordable home. In fact, whatever ambitions

2
Tudalen y pecyn 77



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&H}ER

we may set in housing policy, whether it be ensuring quality, ending homelessness, or improving

affordability; the supply of social housing has a crucial role to play.

In addition, social homes are vital in helping realise wider ambitions for the Welsh Government
as they play a significant role in supporting people’s life chances, their employment
opportunities, and their physical and mental wellbeing. Unless we ensure that people have
access toahome thatis safe, secure, suitable and affordable we are failing to remove one of the

fundamental barriers they may face in their lives.

It is important that the supply of social housing is also considered within the context of a wider
vision for home and ending homelessness in Wales. A vision that recognises the
interconnectedness of various strands of housing policy and that has at its heart a recognition
of a legal right to adequate housing. Without this overarching vision it is possible that policy

changes, however welcome, lead to unintended consequence in other areas.

This vision should also be clear on the importance of ensuring that people can both access and
keep a home. In terms of social homes that means setting out not only how we will identify need
and deliver homes but also how to support people into them, taking account of allocations

policies and support needs.

Shelter Cymru recommends that the Welsh Government takes steps to set out a new housing
vision: A vision for home and for ending homelessness that builds on the positive steps taken
by Welsh Government to date, and that recognises the significant role that housing has to play

in realising its cross-government ambitions.

Building a picture of the homes we need

At Shelter Cymru we are clear that home is everything. However, for many people today home is

adream rather than areality. Something we see in a range of housing need statistics, including:

e Risingnumberslivingintemporaryaccommodation, with 11,501 people in Wales currently

trapped in such places, more than 3,000 of whom are children.'

' StatsWales, Homeless individuals temporarily accommodated at the end of the period by local authority and period, accessed
16.04.2024

3
Tudalen y pecyn 78


https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Homelessness/homelessness-accommodation-provision-and-rough-sleeping/individualstemporarilyaccommodated-by-localauthority-period

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&L.;!;ER

e 0Ongoing rough sleeping, with 126 people estimated sleeping rough across Wales in
January 2024.2

e Record waiting lists for social housing, with Freedom of Information requests from BBC
Wales showing 139,000 people were waiting for a social home at the end of 2023.° A

number that is likely to be an underestimate of actual social housing need.

Although shocking these numbers can tell us only so much, and what they cannot do is help us to
fully understand the impact that an inadequate supply of homes is having on people and families

across Wales, something we see every day at Shelter Cymru through our advice services.

Last year we provided help to 12,348 households - 1in every 109 in Wales and in all these cases
we encounter the realities of a system that isn't working and that isn't fit for purpose. A system
where families are forced to share single rooms, where people face eviction from their homes

for noreason, and where the homes that are available are often unaffordable or unsuitable.

This housing emergency has not manifested overnight. It is the result of decades of failure to
build the homes we need or to set out a clear vision for home and ending homelessness in Wales.
A failure we see in the significant increase in reliance on the private rented sector (PRS) over
recent decades. With the number of households living in the PRS increasing by 155% over a 20-
year period, an increase driven by a failure to ensure adequate choice in the homes people can
access.“ A lack of choice compounded by the long-term effect of the Right to Buy and its impact
onthe stock of socialhomesin Wales. Faced without the option of owning theirhome ora secure

social home people are often left with the PRS as an option of last resort.

When building a picture of need for social homes we must also look beyond the number of homes

needed to also include the type and location of the homes.

At Shelter Cymru we believe in ensuring everyone has access not just to a secure and affordable
home but also one that is suitable. For some, that will mean a home suited to specific needs
relating to disability, for others it will mean suited to their family size. For everyone though it is
important that suitability is considered alongside other aspects(e.g. genuine affordability) when

assessing housing need in Wales.

2 StatsWales, Rough sleepers by local authority, accessed 16.04.2024
3BBC, BBC Wales Investigates: I'm homeless - how will Santa find me?, December 2023
“ Office for National Statistics, Housing, England and Wales: Census 2021, January 2023.

4
Tudalen y pecyn 79


https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Homelessness/homelessness-accommodation-provision-and-rough-sleeping/roughsleepers-by-localauthority
https://www.bbc.co.uk/iplayer/episode/m001tfb8/bbc-wales-investigates-im-homeless-how-will-santa-find-me
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/bulletins/housingenglandandwales/census2021#tenure

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&H}ER

Understanding the homes we need is vital to ensuring that the ambitions of the Welsh
Government can be realised. For example, ending homelessness can only be achieved if we
ensure that people have access to the right homes, in the right places, with the right support.

And it's necessary that housing need calculations and assessments reflect this.

Taking all this into account it is clear that the level of need for social homes in Wales today is
extreme, and far outstrips current supply. Addressing this by delivering the homes we need
will require an increase in the priority given by Welsh Government to both understanding the

true level of need and to planning long term for effective delivery.

Building on success and establishing a right to adequate housing

In any discussion of social housing supply in Wales it is important to acknowledge the progress
of recent years. The decision by the Welsh Government to set out a clear commitment to deliver
20,000 social homes in this Senedd term is hugely welcome, as is the allocation of record
amounts of capital funding in the Welsh Budget to deliver this. Additionally, the flexible approach
to delivery through programmes like the Transitional Accommodation Capital Programme
(TACP)is a positive demonstration of intent and shows an understanding of the current need to

work around barriers to achieve ambitious targets.

However, whilst the steps that have been taken are welcome, levels of need continue to outstrip
delivery. In addition, whilst delivering 20,000 social homes is undoubtedly a positive thing it can
only ever be one part of a wider plan - a KPI that helps us track progress against wider ambitions
to end homelessness and to ensure everyone has access to the safe, secure, suitable, and

affordable home they deserve.

This is why we need the Welsh Government to set out a vision for home and ending
homelessness, and within this provide clarity around the role that social homes will play in ending

the housing emergency. That means engaging with questions including:

o Who Welsh Government believes social homes are for, and how they will establish the
level of need of those groups?
e How we ensure that the homes built today will continue to be maintained as high quality,

affordable homes in perpetuity.

5
Tudalen y pecyn 80



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SHELTEI;\I
CYMRU

e How we ensure that allocations policies work to contribute to the vision we have for
social homes in Wales and to ending homelessness.
e How we ensure that people and communities in need are heard in the design of policy,

the design of schemes and the design of the overarching vision we need.

At Shelter Cymru, we believe it is vital that this vision for home and ending homelessness is

underpinned by the establishment of a legal right to adequate housing for everyone in Wales.

The role of the right to adequate housing

Enshrining in domestic law the internationally recognised Right to Adequate Housing would
require Welsh Government to set out its vision and long-term, cross-tenure strategy for home
and ending homelessness so that it can bridge the gap between supply and demand/need, over
time. It would provide a framework for defining the purpose of social homes within the whole
housing system, and ensuring the long-term strategy for, and delivery of, the social homes we
need. This legal change would ensure that future governments’ have a clear obligation to enact

policies that progressively realise this right for everyone in Wales.

Whilst a Right to Adequate Housing would enable governments to be held more strongly to
account for their progress in delivering sufficient, suitable, and affordable homes to meet need,
its value is much wider. This is about driving the clear whole system vision we lack; it's about
ensuring a longer-term focus - well beyond a Senedd term. It is the lack of long-term strategy
and alegacy of underinvestment in social homes that underpins the current housing emergency.
In the context of social housing, it would require an unrelenting focus on removing barriers to

delivery of social homes.

We should also not overlook the fact that a Right to Adequate Housing is popular, in keeping

with our international obligations as a nation, and financially prudent.

Research conducted in 2020 by CIH Cymru shows that 77% of people in Wales support a legal
right to housing.® Meanwhile independent research conducted by Alma Economics on behalf of

the Back the Bill campaign showed that a £5 billion investment in delivering against the Right to

®CIH Cymru, Three-quarters support legal right to housing in Wales, December 2020

6
Tudalen y pecyn 81


https://www.cih.org/news/three-quarters-support-legal-right-to-housing-in-wales

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

Adequate Housing would realise £11.5 billion of socio-economic benefit over 30 years. Put

another way that's a return of £2.30 for every £1invested.®

Building the social homes we need

Inthisresponse Shelter Cymruis clear that a vision for home and ending homelessness is central
to understanding the social homes we need, and to delivering them. However, we also recognise
that the scale of the housing emergency in Wales today means that whilst this vision is being
developed we must also take stepsto ensure homes are being delivered now by directly enabling

delivery and by removing blockages to homes where they are identified.
To deliver this will need:

e Unrelenting political will.

e (reater capital investment, including an increased percentage of Welsh Government
spending being directed towards building social homes as part of a focus on prevention
and on investing to save.

e An increased role for Welsh Government in directly enabling the building of homes,
through greater involvement in areas like land assembly and planning.

e (reater investment in and support for skills development to ensure that our home

building sector has the necessary capacity to deliver against need.

Fundamentally, Shelter Cymru believes that across Wales there is a shared commitment to
deliver social housing and a shared recognition that more needs to be done to deliver it - this
gives grounds for optimism. But we must move faster. We must reach the current 20,000 social
homes to rent target and keep delivering social homes until need is met. And for the people we
help, we must remain mindful that their lives and childhoods are passing by; we can expect they
will be scarred by the absence of a suitable, stable, and genuinely affordable home. In this
response we have tried to reflect that context and to provide feedback and views in a
constructive manner. Beyond this we would be happy to work with the Committee or the Welsh
Government to investigate the viability of our recommendations further or to provide more

evidence to support them where we can.

8 Alma Economics, The right to adequate housing in Wales: cost-benefit analysis, September 2022

7
Tudalen y pecyn 82


https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/Alma-Economics-Back-the-Bill-Final-Phase-2-report.pdf

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&H}ER

Key Recommendations

1. The Welsh Government should set out a clear vision and long-term strategy for home and
ending homelessness. A vision underpinned by the progressive realisation of a right to
adequate housing and that provides clarity on the role of the different aspects of our
housing system (e.g. social housing, community housing, private rented sector,
homeownership).

2. Improvements should be made to how housing need is assessed to ensure a clear picture
of need across Wales and in individual areas. This should include greater engagement
with people to understand their needs and those of communities, as well as regular
national level surveys and assessments of the numbers and types of homes needed to
end the housing emergency.

3. The Welsh Government should expand its role in enabling the building of homes, and
particularly social homes. This should include a greater role in land assembly and greater
transparency around the ownership of land in both public and private hands.

4. The Welsh Government should provide additional investment and support towards
promoting planning as a career.

5. The Welsh Government should develop an expanded role for acquisition of homes by
social landlords, including both Mortgage and Rent Rescue schemes. This should be
accompanied by funding to support social landlords in bringing those homes up to

necessary standards for a high-quality social home.

Response to terms of reference

Progress towards meeting the target of 20,000 low carbon social homes for
rent; and the extent to which current and projected levels of social
housebuilding are likely to meet housing need

Progress towards 20,000 social homes
During the first two years of this Senedd term a total of 5,775 social homes have been delivered.’

Placed against a basic division of 4,000 homes needed per year to deliver a 20,000 target, then
this would suggest we are significantly short of where we should be. However, it isimportant to

acknowledge that in any building programme we would expect delivery to ramp up over its life

7Welsh Government, Affordable housing provision: April 2022 to March 2023, November 2023.

8
Tudalen y pecyn 83


https://www.gov.wales/affordable-housing-provision-april-2022-march-2023-html

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

cycle. That being said we would caution against the idea that progress towards the target is
where it should be as it is clear that the barriers to the delivery of homes in Wales today are
immense and that meeting the 20,000-home target will be difficult, although we urge Welsh

Government to continue striving towards this.

Within this question of progress against target it is also important to make a distinction between
the delivery of entirely new homes and the acquisition of existing homes from elsewhere within

the market.

We welcome the flexibility that the Welsh Government has provided to Registered Social
Landlords (RSLs) for acquisition through approaches like the Transitional Accommodation
Capital Programme (TACP). An approach that helps ensure the full allocation of capital grant can
be spent and that more homes are provided to people in need. However, whilst contributing to
the target for social housing, shifting homes between tenures(e.qg. acquisition from the private
rented sector) will not have an overall impact on housing supply in Wales. This is not to say that
the Welsh Government should not include homes delivered through acquisition in their tracking
against the target but rather that it is important to recognise that acquisition as an approach
makes a different contribution to addressing the housing emergency in Wales by reducing the
availability of homes in another sector, albeit that it is being used effectively to prevent

homelessness for individual households.

Recognising differences in type of supply, and the value of different approaches, should also be
part of setting out a vision for home and ending homelessness. Ensuring that there is a clear
understanding of how approaches in one part of the housing sector can mean knock on impacts

in another, and the need to plan for those.

Even with welcome flexibility such as TACP, the challenge of meeting the 20,000-home target
remains significant. Barriers such as access to suitable land, skills shortages, planning delays
and funding combine to create a difficult environment where progress may be slower than
hoped. The difficulty of meeting the target also reflects the fact that meeting it should not be
the only aim of the Welsh Government's approach to social housing. More broadly there should
be an explicit strategy to reduce barriers to social housing delivery and to develop a sustainable
long-term pipeline of delivery for social housing that will ensure we reach a position where

everyone who needs one has access to a safe, secure, suitable, and affordable social home.

9
Tudalen y pecyn 84



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

Understanding need more clearly
Establishing the 20,000-home target as one part of a wider vision for home and ending

homelessness is vital. Not least because delivering the full target - whilst welcome - would not
mean we have met the need for social homes in Wales. As outlined in our introduction, even a
basic assessment of need based on waiting list data and on statutory homelessness figures
shows that demand exceeds 20,000. If we also account for people who do not appear in
statistics, such as those living in overcrowded conditions, hidden homeless households, and
those ininadequate homes but who have not registered for a social home then the true figure of

need would be even higher.

The current target is also based on assessments of need from 2019 that included inputs such as
2,600 households living in temporary accommodation.® A number that has since grown to more
than 11,500. Other estimates also reinforce the challenge of an ongoing failure to deliver at the
levels needs. For example, in 2018, Crisis estimated housing need per year in Wales at 14,000

with 4,000 of these to be social homes - a level of delivery that has not subsequently been met.*

The existing approach to calculating need nationally and at a local level is also limited in how far
it can ensure the best possible housing outcomes for communities. Research produced by Tyfu
Tai Cymru: Right place, right home, right size?'®" Highlighted the conflict between a hard,
minimal assessment of need and creating a desirable and sustainable home. To address this a
qualitative element should be included in how need is assessed to ensure that outcomes reflect

the needs of communities.

A new approach to assessing need should also make clear the distinction between social homes
and homes for social rent. Currently, the Welsh Government target of 20,000-homes isinclusive
of arange of products(e.qg. social rent and intermediate rent). Whilst a range of products to suit
all types of need isimportant, we believe that a clear distinction between different products and
the roles they can play in ending the housing emergency is key. In addition, at a time when the
housing emergency is acute, we urge that social rent is prioritised over other tenures unless

there is a clear unmet need for an alternative.

8 Statistics for Wales, Estimates of Additional Housing Need in Wales (2019-based), August 2020.

9 Crisis, Housing supply requirements across Great Britain: for low-income households and homeless people, November 2018

0 Tyfu Tai Cymru, Right place, right home, right size?, 2020

"Tyfu Tai Cymru was a five-year housing policy project from the Chartered Institute of Housing Cymru that provided insightful
analysis and helped fill key evidence gaps to support policy progression on housing.

10
Tudalen y pecyn 85


https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2020-08/estimates-of-additional-housing-need-in-wales-2019-based_0.pdf
https://www.crisis.org.uk/media/239700/crisis_housing_supply_requirements_across_great_britain_2018.pdf
https://www.cih.org/media/njapluuc/0489-ttc-right-place-right-home-right-size-final.pdf

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

A distinction should also be drawn here between local assessments of need that help establish
plans and policies inindividual areas and a wider national assessment of need, something that is
necessary to inform a clear vision for home and ending homelessness. We recognise that the
Welsh Government has previously produced such assessments, however, there should now be a
commitment to periodically producing a detailed assessment of housing need across Wales -
building on the last assessment of housing need published in 2020."” This periodic assessment
should be supported by a more reqular housing review that helps to build a dataset of need and
housing conditions in Wales. This would better enable an assessment to be based not only on
establishing a shortage of homes but also on the number of homes needed to ensure that nobody

is living in inadequate housing.”

Recommendations

1. As well as retaining numerical targets a new overarching vision for home and ending
homelessness should commit to removing barriers to building social homes and to the
Welsh Government playing a greater role in enabling delivery.

2. Full transparency should be provided in social housing figures to make clear how many
homes being delivered are at social rent vs. other tenures.

3. New guidance on assessing housing need at a local authority level should be introduced
that includes qualitative elements to ensure that the best possible picture of need is
developed.

4. The Welsh Government should produce both periodic assessments of housing need

across Wales and more frequent housing surveys.

The challenges faced by social landlords in increasing supply

Shelter Cymru is confident that other organisations will be able to offer greater detail on the
challengesfacedbysocial landlordsinincreasing supply. However, we do think there are specific
areas that should be considered as part of this inquiry and that we would support further

investigation on with a view to reducing barriers. These include:

e Availability of skilled workers.

12 Statistics for Wales, Estimates of Additional Housing Need in Wales (2019-based), August 2020

B The English Housing Survey may offer a starting point for such a review, although we would expect that changes could be made
to ensure that it delivers the best possible data set for understanding need and for supporting the specific approach to housing
taken in Wales.

11
Tudalen y pecyn 86


https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2020-08/estimates-of-additional-housing-need-in-wales-2019-based_0.pdf

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&H}ER

e Ashortage of materials/cost of materials.

e Accessto sufficient funding/finance.

e Qverstretched and under resourced planning departments.
e Accesstoland.

e Theimpact of guidance on phosphates

One way the Welsh Government can address these issues is to increase its role as an ‘enabler’ of
housing delivery. Taking a proactive approach in areas like land assembly to help support the

delivery of social homes.

There is also more that the Welsh Government could do to reduce barriers to delivery. For
example, investment in planning departments and a focus on promoting careers in planning

would help to address backlogs related to staff shortages.

One other area that the Welsh Government should consider is the support that RSLs may need
to fully take advantage of flexibility in capital funding. For example, where the Welsh Government
is enabling the acquisition of properties, it may be that additional funding is required to ensure

that those homes meet relevant quality standards.

Recommendations
1. The Welsh Government should seek an expanded role in enabling the delivery of social
homes, including through a more proactive role in land assembly.
2. The Welsh Government should provide additional investment and support towards

promoting planning as a career.

How housing standards and decarbonisation affect the delivery of new social
housing

Shelter Cymru believes others will be well placed to give a detailed response on this point.
However, it is important to consider this in the context of what social housing is for, and why a

clear vision for home and ending homelessness in Wales is so important.

The affordability of social homesis - rightly - a central part of their identity and the way that they
provide people with support and security. However, affordability is only one part of what makes
a social home an important part of our housing market. Providing people with a social home is

also about ensuring they have a high-quality home that is suitable for their needs and that is

12
Tudalen y pecyn 87



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&H}ER

managed by a landlord who can offer support services where necessary. In the context of a
discussion around the potential trade-offs of high standards vs. supply this is important to keep

in mind.

We recognise that maximising the delivery of social homes s vital, and that afocus on areas such
as low carbon homes can mean increased per unit costs and fewer overall homes. However, we
would urge that a focus on maximising both the quality of the homes we deliver and the
number continues, as that will deliver the best overall long term outcomes for the people we

support and for people in Wales.

Currently, the Welsh Government is rightly committed to delivering not just 20,000 social homes
but 20,000 low-carbon social homes. Demonstrating that it understands the importance of
quality in social homes and also the way that investment in social homes can drive change, by

helping to drive growth in skills and innovation for delivering low carbon homes more widely.

Moving forwards the Welsh Government should use a vision for home and ending homelessness
toset out therole it sees for socialhomes beyond just a product to tackle affordability pressures
and to maintain a high-level of ambition for how quality homes support cross government

priorities.

Recommendations
1. The Welsh Government should use a vision for home and ending homelessness to set out
the role of social homes and to set ambitious plans around quality that help drive

progress across the home building sector.

The opportunities and risks in increasing government borrowing and
institutional investment

At Shelter Cymru we believe that the case has long been made that the benefits of investing in
social homes significantly outweigh the costs of doing so, and particularly at a time when

housing need and the housing emergency across Wales is acute.

Significant public spending is currently directed towards mitigating crises or towards dealing

with the symptoms of issues rather than the causes. Increasing investment upstream, in

13
Tudalen y pecyn 88



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&L.};ER

prevention measures, would help to address this and to drive down costs in other areas over

time.

This approach - an invest to save model - is particularly relevant in housing because of the role
that a good quality, affordable and suitable home can play in people’s lives. Ensuring that
everyone had access to a home like this would help drive down both the direct and indirect costs

that stem from a lack of adequate homes, including:

o (osts associated with homelessness such as local authority spending on temporary
accommodation.

o (osts associated with poor mental and physical health that in some cases stem directly
from, or are exacerbated by, low quality or inadequate housing (e.g. living in damp

conditions or the stresses associated with a lack of security and affordability).

Healthy homes, healthy Wales

Health is a policy area where the impact of along-term failure to provide access to good quality,
suitable homes is seen. Research from Public Health Wales has shown that poor quality housing
in Wales already costs the NHS £95 million in first-year treatment costs, with an overall societal
cost of £1billion." The same research estimates that the cost of mitigating poor housing(with a

focus on ensuring current homes are hazard free) would be £548 million."

Ensuring a sufficient supply of high-quality social homes has a key role to play in realising the
benefits of healthier homes for the people of Wales - and for our NHS. Good-quality, affordable
and suitable homes will mean fewer people suffering direct health consequences from issues
like damp and mould. It will also help to reduce stress from issues like affordability and give
people the stability needed to focus on education, employment or others areas of their life that

can make a difference to their overall wellbeing, and national wellbeing

The investment value of a Right to Adequate Housing
The Back the Bill coalition, of which Shelter Cymru is a member, has undertaken research to
demonstrate the economic value of realising a Right to Adequate Housing in Wales.™® That

research found that that for every £1 invested in realising this right £2.30 of socio-economic

¥ Public Health Wales, Making a Difference Housing and Health: A Case for Investment, June 2019
" |bid
'8 Alma Economics, The right to adequate housing in Wales: cost-benefit analysis, September 2022

14
Tudalen y pecyn 89


https://phwwhocc.co.uk/resources/making-a-difference-housing-and-health-a-case-for-investment-main-report/
https://www.taipawb.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/Alma-Economics-Back-the-Bill-Final-Phase-2-report.pdf

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

benefit would be generated.” Over a 30-year period that would equate to £11.5 billion of benefit
for the Welsh Government.™ Some of that benefit would derive from reducing the costs outlined

above, however, others come from the act of investing in homes themselves, such as:

o Therental value of newly built housing.

e Increased economic output from job creation in a home building programme.

Recommendations
1.  The Welsh Government should adopt an invest to save approach in its approach to the
delivery of homes and consider the broad cost savings and public health benefits that
might stem from an increased focus on ensuring an adequate supply of high quality,
affordable, suitable homes.
2. The Welsh Government should legislate for everyone in Wales to have the Right to

Adequate Housing.

How effectively the planning system is supporting social housebuilding

In our response to the question on barriers facing social landlords we have touched on the issue

of resourcing the planning system in Wales and we refer the Committee back to this.

Recommendations
1. The Welsh Government should provide additional investment and support towards
promoting planning as a career.
2. The Welsh Government should investigate the value of a central planning function that
can provide support to local authorities where needed. For example, on one off large-

scale applications or in times where resourcing leads to significant backlogs.

How to improve the strategic management of public and private land for social
housebuilding, including compulsory purchase

The value at which land enters development is a key determinant of how viable a high-quality,
affordable development will be. In recent years many organisations have produced significant

pieces of work examining this topic and considering how different approaches to land could

71bid
®bid

15
Tudalen y pecyn 90



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&L.;!;ER

deliver better housing outcomes.” Much of this work has focused on England, however, there
are many transferable lessons that could be drawn, and we would encourage the Welsh

Government to commission research in this area and the viability of approaches such as:

e Anincreased role for Community Land Trusts (CLTs) in the delivery of new homes and
the acquisition of existing homes.
e The delivery of homes via a Development Corporation model in which the Welsh

Government plays an active role in land assembly and master planning.

The Welsh Government should also commission research into the lessons that can be learnt from
international approaches to delivering and managing new affordable homes, such as those in

Vienna, Hamburg and across the Netherlands.?®

In addition, the Local Government and Housing Committee would be well placed to launch a
specific inquiry into land in Wales, taking learnings from a similar inquiry conducted in England
by the House of Commons Select Committee on Housing, Communities and Local

Government.?'?
Specific changes to the management of land that should be considered include:

¢ Increased transparency around the ownership and control of land in Wales:
Organisations such as Housing Justice Cymru have done important work in drawing
attention to the role that land owned by faith bodies can play in helping to address our
housing emergency.? However, the difficulties in identifying the land owned by single

institutions(e.q. the Church) draws attention to the wider problem of land transparency.

Understanding who owns the land beneath our feet is key to improving the way that we
identify the best sites for development. Its central to ensuring that competition in
housebuildingis possible anditis central to ensuring that the public sectoris maximising
the role it can play in delivery. However, a lack of accessible data on land ownership,

means that building a picture of this even in a single area can be challenging. Changing

9 See: JRF: The missing piece: the case for a public sector master developer; Shelter: New Civic Housebuilding; Shelter: Grounds
for Change; Centre for Progressive Policy: Gathering the Windfall

20 See: Urbed, Learning from International examples of affordable housing

2'Now the Select Committee on Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

22 See: House of Commons Housing, Communities and Local Government Committee report on Land Value Capture

23 See: Housing Justice Cymru Faith in Affordable Housing

16
Tudalen y pecyn 91


file:///C:/Users/robinw/Downloads/the_missing_piece_-_the_case_for_a_public_sector_master_developer%20(1).pdf
https://assets.ctfassets.net/6sxvmndnpn0s/5pgz877rFM1fQNPShCulXL/6591389849fdf83e57a1dcdeee2a3ecf/2017_03_02_New_Civic_Housebuilding_Policy_Report.pdf
https://assets.ctfassets.net/6sxvmndnpn0s/qI7KMBFe3K2wznF4HOf9G/d4022217846f9e393da291375a8d0303/Grounds_For_Change.pdf
https://assets.ctfassets.net/6sxvmndnpn0s/qI7KMBFe3K2wznF4HOf9G/d4022217846f9e393da291375a8d0303/Grounds_For_Change.pdf
https://www.progressive-policy.net/downloads/files/LVC-Report-Sep-2018.pdf
https://www.urbedtrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/Affordable-housing-Shelter-Draft-7.pdf
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmcomloc/766/766.pdf
https://housingjustice.org.uk/cymru/fiah

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&H}ER

this would not only enable large organisations (e.g. social landlords) to identify sites for
development but could also play a significant role in empowering local communities. By
providing them with clear data on ownership and control of land in their area we would
be providing a key tool to bring forward small scale housing plans for addressing need at
acommunity level, potentially increasing the scale of delivery via Community Land Trusts

and Exception Sites.

¢ Developing updated policies on the use of public sector land for housing: Public land is
apowerful resource inaddressing housing need and boosting the supply of social homes.
Where land is already in the public sectorthenit can-theoretically - enter a development

project for no cost, giving scope for innovative and ambitious delivery on such sites.

Through the Welsh Government Land Division, and the exemplar sites it is releasing, an
appetite for using public land to deliver housing is being shown. In remarks to the Local

Government and Housing Committee Julie James MS stated that:

“we're very keen to make sure that we use Welsh Government land to show people
what can be done—what can be developed in a way that gives you a decent return
on your money, but also really excellent mixed-use developments, mixed-tenure

developments, as well."*

This is a welcome approach and moving forwards we hope that the Welsh Government
will expand this and publish any findings from initial sites that could form a best practice
guide. We would also urge Welsh Government to make the delivery of social rent

homes a key objective within any public land for housing programme.

To maximise the potential for public land we would also suggest that Welsh Government
consider creating specific policies around the extraordinary release of public land for
housing where such a development would exceed the level of affordable housing
required by the local plan. This would enable communities or organisations to bring
forward proposals for development on public land even where that land has not been

allocated within the existing local plan.

24 Julie James MS remarks to the Local Government and Housing Committee, January 2024.

17
Tudalen y pecyn 92


https://record.assembly.wales/Committee/13825

CARTREF YW POPETH
HOME IS EVERYTHING SHELTER

CYMRU

Committing to the use of new compulsory purchase powers where necessary to boost
the supply of social housing: Changes to compulsory purchase legislation through the
Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 in Westminster offer the Welsh Government a
new opportunity to boost the delivery of social homes. However, to maximise this there
will be a need for Ministers to set out clearly their willingness to use such powers and to

identify appropriate sites for land assembly to support this purpose.

Within this it is important to remember that a successful approach to compulsory
purchase is one in which compulsory purchase is not - in fact - required. The value of
updated compulsory purchase powers lies in the way that they help shape the
expectation of landowners. Clarity for landowners over what the realisable value of their
land is and the willingness of the Welsh Government to use the powers it has should

encourage them to participate in the scheme rather than force a compulsory purchase.

Recommendations

1.

The Welsh Government, or the Committee, should undertake a detailed inquiry into land
(public and private)in Wales and the role it can play in enabling social homes. This inquiry
should include reviewing land transparency and the potential role of public sector land.

Welsh Government Ministers should set out clearly how they intend to make best use of
updated compulsory purchase powers to facilitate the delivery of social homes in Wales.
This approach should be clear that there is a willingness to make use of these powers if
necessary but that there is a preference to work in partnership with landowners to bring

land into development at a fair value which delivers the best outcomes for communities.

The potential for increasing income from land value capture mechanisms to

invest in social housing

Shelter Cymru believes Committee should approach this question in two parts:

1.

Are current land value capture mechanisms, such as S106, delivering the maximum

possible numbers of social homes?

2. Arethereadditionalapproachestolandvalue capture that could be employed toincrease

the supply of social homes?

18
Tudalen y pecyn 93



CARTREF YW POPETH \

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH&L.;!;ER

Maximising current mechanisms

Shelter Cymru does not believe that current approaches to land value capture are delivering the
maximum number of social homes possible. For example, in Wales 72% of social housing supply
is currently provided via capital grant whereas in England the largest single source of social rent
homes is via S106 agreements with private developers that use no grant.?? Whilst there are
likely good reasons for this variation(e.g. better grant conditions in Wales and differencesinland
values and development viability) it does beg the question as to whether more could be delivered

via S106 in Wales. As such we would recommend Welsh Government commission research:

e Reviewing affordable housing policies across Wales to understand current approaches
in detail.

e Reviewing how frequently (and to what level) housing schemes are being delivered that
deliver fewer affordable homes than required by local policies.

e Reviewing how frequently affordable housing requirements are being delivered either
‘off-site’ or via financial contributions.?

o Establishing a best practice guide to support local authorities in Wales to maximise the

delivery of affordable - and particularly social - homes via S106 agreements.

Shelter Cymru would be happy to work with either the Government or the Committee on such a

review.

Additional approaches
As outlined in our response to the previous question bringing land into development at the right
value can play a significant role in enabling the delivery of more social homes and we would

encourage the Welsh Government to take an expanded role in land assembly to support this.

Recommendations
1. The Welsh Government should commission research into S106 agreements to
understand in more detail any current challenges in delivering social homes through

these and to establish a best practice guide.

2 Welsh Government, Affordable housing provision: April 2022 to March 2023, November 2023.

% Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, Live Table 1000, accessed 16/04/2024.

27 The HBF has undertaken research into unspent developer contributions in England and Wales (Section 106 Agreements and
unspent developer contributions in England & Wales) that would offer a starting point for this research. However, this is a limited
piece of work in that it focuses only on unspent contributions and not the overall value of contributions.

19
Tudalen y pecyn 94


https://www.gov.wales/affordable-housing-provision-april-2022-march-2023-html
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/6564ba90888c060013fa7da1/Live_Table_1000.ods
https://www.hbf.co.uk/documents/12809/HBF_Unspent_Developer_Contributions_Report_2023.pdf
https://www.hbf.co.uk/documents/12809/HBF_Unspent_Developer_Contributions_Report_2023.pdf

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

2. The Welsh Government or the Committee should undertake a detailed inquiry into land
(public and private)in Wales. This inquiry should include reviewing land transparency and

an expanded role for public sector land in delivering homes.

The Welsh construction sector’s capacity to build new low-carbon social homes;
the potential for acquisitions of existing homes and remodelling of existing

buildings

Capacity for building new low-carbon social homes

We believe others will be better placed to provide detailed evidence.

Capacity for acquisitions

Elsewhere in this response we have made points relevant to this question, these are:

o That we recognise acquisition can play an important role in meeting housing need and

welcome funding such as TACP that enables this.

o That the Welsh Government should consider if any additional funding for RSLs is needed
to support acquisition whilst ensuring that homes meet required quality standards such

as WHQOS?2.

We would also draw attention to Shelter Cymru’s previous campaigning on mortgage rescue and
the role that this can play in supporting households in the homeownership sector facing
hardship. The Welsh Government has introduced the Help to Stay scheme to support
homeowners, however, an alternative scheme focused on acquisition by social landlords should
also beintroduced. We set out how such a scheme could be delivered in January 2023 and would

recommend this as the basis for further consideration.?®

The Welsh Government should also introduce a similar scheme for Rent Rescue, enabling social
landlords to acquire homes from within the PRS and convert them to social homes. Given current
suggestions that private landlords intend to exit the market this scheme would provide a way to

both expand the supply of social homes in Wales and protect people from eviction.

28 Shelter Cymru, Preventing homelessness for struggling homeowners: A call to reintroduce a Mortgage Rescue Scheme in Wales,
January 2023

20
Tudalen y pecyn 95


https://sheltercymru.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Mortgage-rescue-briefing.pdf

CARTREF YW POPETH
HOME IS EVERYTHING SHELTER

CYMRU

The Welsh Government should also think about the role of acquisition schemes within a wider

vision for home and for ending homelessness in Wales as such schemes can help:

Protect people from homelessness, especially during the current cost of living crisis.
Grow the overall number of social homes in Wales, which has long-term benefits for
providing future homes and in terms of an asset base.

Enableinvestmentin homes by social landlords and by Government to ensure that people

are able to live in a high-quality home.

Recommendations

1.

The Welsh Government should introduce a Mortgage Rescue Scheme that focuses on the
acquisition of homes by social landlords.

The Welsh Government should introduce a Rent Rescue scheme that enables social
landlords to acquire homes from the PRS in a range of circumstances.

The Welsh Government should include a role for the acquisition of existing homes by

social landlords as part of a wider vision for home and homelessness in Wales.

How local communities can be effectively engaged in social housing

developments in their areas.

Engaging communities in the planning for and delivery of social housing should be a priority for

the Welsh Government and for individual local authorities in Wales. Already in this response we

have noted ways in which this could be done, including:

Including quantitative elements in an assessment of housing need: Engaging
communities directly when establishing housing need would help ensure that these
assessments are as robust as possible. In addition, it would create new space for
assessments to engage more fully in establishing the types of homes that are needed

within communities.

Delivering a more transparent land market: Increased transparency in the land market
would provide communities with greater opportunities to bring forwards ideas for

housing schemes that might meet a particular need they can identify in their local area.

21
Tudalen y pecyn 96



CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

Engaging communities also goes beyond this and Shelter Cymru has recently produced a report
on behalf of Tyfu Tai Cymru looking in detail how we can ensure the homes we build meet need,
are desirable and are delivered with community engagement.?®* This report sets out a number

of recommendations that the Committee should consider, including:

1. Improved understanding and de-stigmatisation: Housing associations and local
authorities should work collaboratively to raise awareness of different housing tenures
and their role in the housing market. This work should be supported by the Welsh
Government. At the same time work should be undertaken to tackle any prevailing'myths’

about who social housing is for. This should also form a key part of developing a wider

vision for home and ending homelessness that - among other things - engages with the

role that social homes can play.

2. Work to understand what tenants want from their homes: Delivering enough social
homes is an important goal, and one Shelter Cymru supports wholeheartedly. However,
ensuring those homes are high quality and meet the wants and needs of tenants is also
vital. To this end more work should be done at a local level with communities to
understand what they would like to see in new social housing developments in terms of
design, space, and accessibility. Existing tenant scrutiny panels provide a place to start
with this approach but the changing needs of those seeking socialhomes now, and in the

future, also need to be understood,

3. Tenant inclusion and community engagement should be fundamental to the
development process: Demonstrating a commitment to this should be a fundamental
aspect of social housing grant applications and should be encouraged strongly by Welsh

Government in all developments.

Conclusion

A'lack of social homes in Wales sits at the very heart of the housing emergency, and without an

improved supply of social homes it is not possible that we can end it.

28 Tyfu Tai Cymru, Housing need and desirability, February 2024
0 Tyfu Tai Cymru was a five-year housing policy project from the Chartered Institute of Housing Cymru that provided insightful
analysis and helped fill key evidence gaps to support policy progression on housing

22
Tudalen y pecyn 97


https://www.cih.org/media/542debxr/0512-ttc-report-housing-need-and-desirability-eng-v3.pdf

CARTREF YW POPETH

HOME IS EVERYTHING SH%;!;ER

At Shelter Cymru we see every day the impact of the current lack of social homes. We see it in
the fact people are driven into homelessness and/or trapped in inadequate housing: in
temporary accommodation that lacks basic services, in private rented homes that are far too
expensive, and in homes that simply don't meet the quality standards we know they should. But
right now, helping people to find the right home, in the right place, with the right support is
incredibly challenging. Something that will not change without a significant increase in the

number of high-quality, social homes across Wales.

Without sufficient social homesiit is also impossible for Welsh Government to deliver against its
ambitions in housing and more broadly. Ending homelessness, for example, requires that there
are enough homes available and that those homes are the right homes, based on a full
understanding what need there is. That means considering issues such as the need for single
households, for families, for people with disabilities, for people who need additional support for

maintaining a tenancy and many more requirements as well.

Meeting this challenge requires unrelenting political will and will require us to build on the good
progress that has been made in recent years and that deserves to be recognised. But it will also
need a clear vision for home and ending homelessness, a vision that includes clarity over the role
that Welsh Government will play in directly enabling the supply of social homes and in removing

existing blockages to these.

This vision should also go beyond the ‘how’ of delivering homes to engage broadly with the
interconnectedness of housing policy. Focusing on ensuring a sufficient supply of homes whilst
also thinking about how we support people into the right home and support them to keep their
home. For example, making sure that access to advice around housing rights is available, that
support services are fully funded, and that social landlords management practices are a gold

standard.

At Shelter Cymru, what we want is a Wales where everybody has access to a safe, secure,
suitable and affordable home. Right now, we know that is not the reality for many people, but

with the right commitment and a clear vision it can be.

23
Tudalen y pecyn 98



Y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai

22 Mai 2024 - clawr y papurau i’w nodi

Eitem 4

Rhif y papur | Mater Oddi wrth Gweithredu
Papur 5 Amrywiaeth ym maes | Ysgrifennydd y I’'w nodi
llywodraeth leol Cabinet dros
Lywodraeth Leol,
Tai a Chynllunio
Papur 6 Y sector rhentu Carolyn Thomas I’'w nodi
preifat AS
Papur 7 Y cyflenwad o dai Pwyllgor Newid I’'w nodi
cymdeithasol Hinsawdd,
Amgylchedd a
Seilwaith
Papur 8 Bil Rhentwyr (Diwygio) | Ysgrifennydd y I’'w nodi
Cabinet dros
Lywodraeth Leol,
Tai a Chynllunio
Papur 9 Diogelwch adeiladau | Welsh Cladiators I’'w nodi
Papur 10 Cyllideb Ddrafft Pwyllgor Cyllid I’'w nodi
Llywodraeth Cymru
2025-26
Papur 11 Bil Diwygio Cyfraith Pwyllgor I’'w nodi
Lesddaliad a Rhydd- Deddfwriaeth,
ddaliad Cyfiawnder a'r
Cyfansoddiad,
Papur 12 Cytundebau Pwyllgor I’'w nodi
rhyngwladol Deddfwriaeth,
Cyfiawnder a’r
Cyfansoddiad,

Tudalen y pecyn 99



Eiteyme4

Papur 5

e dpmps AS/MS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio
Cabinet Secretary for Housing, Local Government and Planning

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

John Griffiths AS

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai
Senedd Cymru

Bae Caerdydd

Caerdydd

CF99 1SN

30 Ebrill 2024
Annwyl John

Rwy'n croesawu adroddiad y Pwyllgor a’r gwaith rydych chi ac aelodau'r Pwyligor
Llywodraeth Leol a Thai wedi ei gyflawni o ran amrywiaeth mewn llywodraeth leol. Mae hyn
yn adeiladu ar yr ymchwiliad a gynhaliwyd gan y Pwyllgor yn 2019, ac mae'n galonogol
gweld y cynnydd a wnaed ers hynny.

Roedd un o'r materion pwysig a godwyd fel rhan o'r ymchwiliad diweddar yn canolbwyntio
ar y cam-drin sy'n digwydd ym myd gwleidyddiaeth. Rwy'n deall eich bod chi ac aelodau'r
Pwyllgor yn siomedig nad oeddech wedi gallu cymryd rhan yn y digwyddiad i drafod cam-
drin mewn gwleidyddiaeth, a gynhaliwyd gan y Gweinidog Cyllid a LIlywodraeth Leol ar y
pryd, Rebecca Evans AS ar ddydd Mercher 31 lonawr 2024, oherwydd ymrwymiadau eraill.

Hefyd roedd hwn yn bwnc a gafodd sylw gan yr Aelodau yn ystod y ddadl ar adroddiad y
Pwyllgor ar Amrywiaeth mewn Llywodraeth Leol ddydd Mercher 7 Chwefror yn y Cyfarfod
Llawn, pan fynegwyd pryderon ynghylch heriau’r sefyllfa bresennol sy'n effeithio ar aelodau
etholedig wrth iddynt gyflawni eu busnes o ddydd i ddydd.

Roedd y digwyddiad yn elwa o gael cynrychiolwyr o bob lefel o lywodraeth yng Nghymru,
gan gynnwys y Senedd, y prif gynghorau a chynghorau cymuned a thref. Roedd yn
ddefnyddiol gallu cymharu a chyferbynnu dulliau gweithredu sydd eisoes ar waith, yn
ogystal & rhannu syniadau a phryderon am faterion yr oedd y cyfranogwyr yn teimlo bod
angen mynd i'r afael & nhw.

Mae fy swyddogion yn cynllunio ar gyfer ail gam y gwaith hwn, sef trafod atebion posibl
gydag ystod ehangach o bobl a sefydliadau yng nghynhadledd CLILC ar 27 Mehefin.

Tudalen y pecyn 100



Byddwn yn croesawu'r cyfle i drafod y mater hwn gyda chi, er mwyn i‘ch profiadau a'ch
syniadau chi ar gyfer newid helpu i lywio'r cam nesaf. Os hoffech dderbyn y cynnig hwn,
efallai y gall ein swyddogion drafod dyddiad cyfleus inni gyfarfod.

Yn gywir,

Julie James AS/MS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio
Cabinet Secretary for Housing, Local Government and Planning

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

0300 0604400
Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
Caerdydd « Cardiff Correspondence.Julie.James@llyw.cymru

CF99 1SN
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.

Tudalen y pecyn 101


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@llyw.cymru

CAROLYN THOMAS

MS FOR NORTH WALES / AS DROS GOGLEDD CYMRU

John Giriffiths MS
Chair, Local Government and Housing Committee

Sent by email only.

25" April 2024
Dear John,

| am writing to thank you and the committee clerks for your hard work and dedication
during my time on the Local Government and Housing Committee. | have thoroughly
enjoyed being a member of the committee and am proud of the important scrutiny we
have undertaken over the last 3 years.

In particular, | believe our recent work on the Private Rental Sector in Wales is a vital
intervention. We face a serious housing crisis, with first time buyers faced with the
biggest barriers to getting on the property ladder in the last 70 years. This means more
and more people are having to rely on private rentals.

| would like to highlight the additional evidence provided in the papers to note from our
meeting on the 18" of April. The evidence provided by the Dogs Trust and Propertymark
regarding pets in private rented accommodation is extremely pertinent. Given that just
7% of adverts are listed as ‘pet friendly’ there is clearly a long way to go to end
discrimination against pet owners.

| trust that the committee will consider this evidence carefully and | hope it will be
published in the final report. It is important that we shine a light on the plight of pet
owners reliant on privately rented accommodation.

Yours sincerely,

Carolyn Thomas MS

@m\@x

Carolyn Thomas 7NN N

Member of the Senedd for North Wales 15 e

Phone | Ffon: 0300 11 00 176 f CarolynThomasMs

Email | E-bost: carolyn.thomas@senedd.wales ’ CThomasMS

Website | Wefan: carolynthomas.wales carolyn_thomasms




Papur 7

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, m
yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith Bae Caerdydd, CEII‘é%ﬁk 4: 3

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
senedd.cymru/SeneddHinsawdd

Climate Change, Environment, 0300200 656_5

and Infrastructure Committee Welsh Parliament
Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN

SeneddClimate@senedd.wales
senedd.wales/SeneddClimate

Huw Irranca-Davies AS 0300 200 6565

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd a Materion Gwledig
Julie James AS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio

8 Mai 2024

Annwyl Huw a Julie

Effaith Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru 2023 (SATC23) ar allu awdurdodau lleol i gyflawni sero net erbyn
2030

Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu ar Berfformiad Corfforaethol ac Adnoddau Cyngor Bro Morgannwg (y
Pwyllgor Craffu) yn ymwneud ag effaith SATC23 ar allu awdurdodau lleol i gyrraedd sero net erbyn
2030.

Mae'r ohebiaeth yn awgrymu bod diffyg eglurder ynghylch pryd y disgwylir i'r sector tai cymdeithasol
fodloni EPC A, ynghylch uchelgais Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer sector cyhoeddus sero net erbyn 2030,
a sut mae'r rhain yn alinio ar gyfer awdurdodau lleol a stoc dai.

Cytunodd y Pwyllgor y dylwn ysgrifennu atoch i ofyn am eglurhad o'r materion hyn.

Yn ei lythyr, mae'r Pwyllgor Craffu yn cyfeirio at newid yn y dyddiad targed o 2030 i 2034 i gartrefi'r
sector cyhoeddus gyrraedd sero net ar 6l i'r Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru (SATC) diweddaraf i gyrraedd
y lefel EPC Effeithlonrwydd Ynni diweddaraf ar gyfer holl gartrefi'r sector cyhoeddus gael ei wthio yn
Ol bedair blynedd 0 2030 i 2034.

gyflawni EPC A erbyn 2033. Mae SATC23 yn nodi bod yn rhaid i bob cartref gyrraedd safon EPC C o
leiaf erbyn 2030 a bod yn rhaid cyflawni EPC A, er nad yw'n nodi pryd.

1. Aallwch chi egluro a yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo i darged ar gyfer yr holl dai
cymdeithasol i gyrraedd EPC A erbyn 2030, ac os felly, pryd? Os pennwyd targed ar gyfer
2030, a'i fod wedi'i ddiwygio ers hynny, a allwch egluro’r rhesymau am hyn?

2. A allwch egluro erbyn pryd rydych yn disgwyl i'r holl gartrefi cymdeithasol fod wedi cyflawni
EPC A?

Tudalen y pecyn 103

f"’/ Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament


https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s500013247/Letter%20from%20the%20Chair%20of%20the%20Vale%20of%20Glamorgan%20Councils%20Corporate%20Performance%20and%20Resources%20Scrutin.pdf
https://www.llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/consultations/2022-05/safon-ansawdd-tai-cymru-2023-drafft_0_0.pdf
mailto:SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales

3. Pa asesiad sydd wedi'i wneud o effaith y safon ar gyfer effeithlonrwydd ynni ar allu
awdurdodau lleol sydd a stoc dai i gyflawni uchelgais Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer sector
cyhoeddus sero net erbyn 20307

Hoffwn godi mater arall, a ddaeth i'r amlwg yn ystod trafodaethau cychwynnol ar y mater hwn. Mae'r
cyflwyniad i SATC23 yn nodi:

"Mae Senedd Cymru yn ymrwymedig i sicthau bod yr holl dai cymdeithasol presennol yn
cyrraedd y safon newydd erbyn 2034 (gall elfennau yn Rhan 3 gael eu cyrraedd ar
adegau gwahanol).”

Mae'r cyfeiriad at Senedd Cymru yn SATC23 yn amlwg yn gamgymeriad, o ystyried nad oes gan'y
Senedd unrhyw rél o ran pennu safonau. Gallai hyn achosi dryswch. Byddai'n ddefnyddiol pe gellid
cywiro hyn cyn gynted a phosibl.

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar am ymateb i'r uchod cyn gynted a phosibl, ac erbyn 6 Mehefin fan bellaf

Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at Gynghorydd Protheroe ac at John Griffiths AS, Cadeirydd y
Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai, er gwybodaeth. Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech wneud yr un
peth wrth ymateb.

Yn gywir,

Llyr Gruffydd AS,
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg.

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English.

Tudalen y pecyn 104

’f”/ Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament



Papur 8 Z
Julie James AS/MS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio

Cabinet Secretary for Housing, Local Government and Planning )\J[ \51‘)

Elin Jones AS Llywodraeth Cymru

Y Llywydd Welsh Government
Senedd Cymru

Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN

E-bost - Llywydd@senedd.cymru

9 Mai 2024
Annwyl Elin

Cyflwynodd Llywodraeth y DU y Bil Rhentwyr (Diwygio) i'r Senedd ar 17 Mai 2023. Nid oedd
angen Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar y pryd.

Fel y dywedwyd eisoes, mae fy swyddogion wedi bod yn gweithio gyda swyddogion yn
Llywodraeth y DU i ymestyn darpariaethau’r gwaharddiad diwahan "dim hawlyddion budd-
daliadau” a "dim plant" i Gymru. Gosodwyd y gwelliannau sy'n ceisio cyflwyno'r
gwaharddiad ar yr arferion hyn i Gymru a Lloegr ar 15 Tachwedd. Cyflwynais Femorandwm
Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol i ymdrin &'r gwelliannau adeg y Cyfnod Pwyllgor ar 30 lonawr.

Ar 18 Ebrill, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth y DU 250 o welliannau Cyfnod Adrodd, sy'n effeithio
ymhellach ar ddarpariaethau'r gwaharddiad diwahan yng Nghymru. Mae gwelliannau hefyd
yr ydym yn ymwybodol ohonynt i Ddeddf Tai 2004 sy'n ymdrin ag uwchlandlordiaid mewn
Tai Amlfeddiannaeth yng Nghymru. Mae gwelliannau hefyd i baragraff 10, Atodlen 2 i
Ddeddf Tai 1996 yr ydym yn credu y bydd angen cydsyniad deddfwriaethol ar eu cyfer.

Yn anffodus, ni fyddwn yn gallu ystyried pob un o'r 250 o welliannau a gyflwynwyd gan y
Llywodraeth o fewn yr amserlen safonol, ond byddaf yn ymdrechu i osod Memorandwm
Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol atodol gyda'r holl welliannau yr ydym eisoes wedi nodi eu bod yn
effeithio ar Gymru cyn gynted & phosibl. Mae'n debygol y bydd hyn y tu hwnt i derfyn amser
2 wythnos Rheol Sefydlog 29, ond gobeithir y bydd yn cael ei gyflwyno mewn pryd i'r
Pwyllgor Busnes ei ystyried yn ei gyfarfod ar 14 Mai.

Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r
Cyfansoddiad, Sarah Murphy AS a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai, John
Griffiths AS.

Yn gywir,

Julie James AS/MS
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio
Cabinet Secretary for Housing, Local Government and Planning

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
0300 0604400

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
Caerdydd « Cardiff Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.wales
CF99 1SN

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth Gymraeg sy’n dod i law yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.nm@gbrMeRegmeg-Q5elsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.wales
mailto:Llywydd@senedd.cymru

Papur 9 / Paper 9

Eitem 4.5

By e-mail
1 May 2024
Subject: Re Housing Minister LHHC 25 April 2024

Thank you for your prompt reply. We did point outin our last email that we are not
aware of the complexities of how the LG&H Committee conducts its business. Your
response explains the reason why no questions were put to the Minister on the pressing
issue of building safety and the lack of remediation in the Welsh private housing sector.
However, given the recent fire incident in Celestia and wider issues of public safety, we
remain concerned that the Minister was not subjected to any questions on building
safety.

We would ask that you put our correspondence before the Committee with a request to
hold the Minister to account on the pedestrian rate of fire remediation progress in the
Welsh private housing sector. We also request that the Committee question the
Minister on why she continues her policy of not holding a regular communications
forum with private sector victims. The current WG "newsletter" is totally inadequate in
dealing with the many questions and concerns that long suffering victims have.

Itis also clear that the Strategic Stakeholders Group on Future Welsh Building Safety
legislation is not meeting the more pressing and urgent needs of Welsh victims.

We remain of the view that urgent legislation is required in Wales to force developers to
remediation to agreed timescales. Without that action we see this crisis drifting on for
many more years.

Diolch yn fawr

With regards

Mark Thomas & Robert Nichols - Welsh Cladiators

By e-mail
30 April 2024
Subject: Re Housing Minister LHHC 25 April 2024

Dear Mark & Rob,
Thank you for your email, which | discussed with John Griffiths MS this morning.
The purpose of the Committee’s session with the Cabinet Secretary for Housing,

Local Government and Planning on 24 April was to take evidence in relation to the

Tudalen y pecyn 106



Committee’s inquiry on the private rented sector. When Welsh Ministers are invited
to appear before Senedd committees it's on the basis of giving evidence as part of a
particular inquiry or to scrutinise specific legislation, unless Ministers are invited to
attend a ‘general scrutiny session’ covering their portfolio, which is agreed in
advance. As the purpose of the session on 24 April was to discuss the private rented
sector, it would not have been appropriate for Members to question the Cabinet
Secretary on other matters.

The Chair has confirmed to me the Committee’s continued interest in all matters
relating to building safety, and that there will be further opportunities to continue to
raise these matters with the Cabinet Secretary.

If you are content, the Committee can consider your email as a paper to note at a
forthcoming meeting.

Kind regards

Clerk, Local Government and Housing Committee, Welsh Parliament

By e-mail
29 April 2024
Subject: Re Housing Minister LHHC 25 April 2024

Dear Committee Members

You will be aware that on the 26 March Chair John Griffiths and Sam Rowlands

visited the Celestia Development in Cardiff Bay to inspect the ongoing serious build and
fire defects. John and Sam witnessed the apartment and met with residents where a
serious fire incident took place on 29 February.

During the visit you also met with some residents representatives from Victoria Wharf .
They are battling Taylor Wimpey to get their fire defective homes also remediated some
two years after an announcement was made . During the meeting we advised the
Committee members that there was lack of private sector remediation going on in both
Cardiff Bay and Swansea despite the WG Developers Contract being signed some 12
months ago. We cited other developments such as Altamar in Swansea & Prospect
Place in Cardiff. We argued that there is a significant disconnect between the
continued statements of Minister Julie James and the lived experience of Welsh private
sector fire cladding and build quality victims.

Now without us understanding the full complexities of the WG's LG & H committee

proceedings, we were very surprised to learn that during the Minister's
recent appearance before the Committee on 24 April there were no comments or

Tudalen y pecyn 107



questions made to the Minister on the continuing failure of private sector developers to
get on and remediate or of the Committee's visit to Celestia.

We trust that the recent changes in the Committee's composition will not resultin a
reduced focus on what remains a major public safety issue and social injustice in
Wales. It's important to stress, as John and Sam witnessed on their recent Celestia
visit, that our building and residents remain at real risk as long as this crisis is allowed
to dragon.

We remain of the view that seven years on, from the horrific Grenfell Tragedy, the Welsh
Government needs to introduce legal powers and sanctions to force developers to get
on and remediate at pace.

We look forward to hearing from you
With regards

Mark Thomas - Rob Nichols - Welsh Cladiators

Tudalen y pecyn 108



Papur 10

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid Bae Caerdydd, Eitﬁtﬁgngi 6

SeneddCyllid@senedd.cymru

Finance Committee senedd.cymru/SeneddCyllid
0300 200 6565

Welsh Parliament
Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN

SeneddFinance@senedd.wales
senedd.wales/SeneddFinance
0300 200 6565

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol
Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor lechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai

8 Mai 2024
Annwyl Gadeiryddion Pwyllgorau,
Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2025-26: Ymgysylltu

Yn ein cyfarfod ar 24 Ebrill 2022, trafododd y Pwyllgor Cyllid (y Pwyllgor) ei raglen ymgysylltu ar gyfer
Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2025-26, sydd ar ddod, cyn dadl flynyddol y Pwyllgor yn'y
Cyfarfod Llawn ar flaenoriaethau gwariant, a drefnwyd ar gyfer 17 Gorffennaf. Rwy'n ysgrifennu at
Gadeirydd pob pwyllgor pwnc i rannu ein syniadau. Mae'r Pwyllgor wedi cytuno i gynnal nifer o
weithgareddau ymgysylitu cyn i'r Gyllideb Ddrafft gael ei chyhoeddi yn hwyrach eleni. Mae'r rhain yn
cynnwys digwyddiad i randdeiliaid, grwpiau ffocws a gynhaliwyd gyda'r cyhoedd, ac amrywiol ddulliau
eraill 0 gasglu barn pobl ifanc.

Digwyddiad i randdeiliaid: Caerfyrddin

Bydd y digwyddiad i randdeiliaid eleni yn cael ei gynnal yng Nghanolfan S4C, Yr Egin, ddydd lau 13
Mehefin. Bydd hwn yn gyfle i'r Pwyllgor glywed yn uniongyrchol gan sefydliadau/unigolion sydd a
diddordeb ar y cynigion arfaethedig ar gyfer y Gyllideb Ddrafft, yn ogystal a'u barn ar ddull
Llywodraeth Cymru o osod y gyllideb a blaenoriaethu adnoddau. Gan fod gwaith ar draws y
pwyllgorau i ymgysylitu & rhanddeiliaid ar y gyllideb yn hanfodol ar gyfer gwaith craffu effeithiol,
hoffwn wahodd Cadeiryddion y Pwyllgorau neu Aelod o bob Pwyllgor i ymuno a'r digwyddiad. Os

Tudalen y pecyn 109

’f’// Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament


mailto:SeneddFinance@senedd.wales

oes gan Gadeiryddion neu Aelodau ddiddordeb mewn dod i'r digwyddiad, dylech gysylltu a'r tim
clercio erbyn 20 Mai, gan ddefnyddio’r cyfeiriad e-bost a ganlyn: SeneddCyllid@Senedd.Cymru.

Ceisio barn y cyhoedd yng Nghymru drwy gynnal grwpiau ffocws ar gyfer ymgysylltu a dinasyddion

Ar ran y Pwyllgor, bydd y Tim Ymgysylltu a Dinasyddion yny Senedd yn cynnal cyfres o grwpiau
ffocws cyhoeddus ar y gyllideb ddrafft. Mae'r tim wedi cynnal ymarferion tebyg dros y blynyddoedd
diwethaf, a nod y gwaith hwn yw llunio astudiaeth trawstoriadol a fydd yn caniatau i'r Pwyllgor fonitro
safbwyntiau ac agweddau dros amser. Deuir o hyd i gyfranogwyr drwy sefydliadau partner tebyg er
mwyn cael yr un ddemograffeg a'r hyn a gafwyd y llynedd, a bydd grwpiau'n cael eu trefnu i
ganolbwyntio ar feysydd polisi penodol. Bydd y Tim Ymgysylltu a Dinasyddion yn rhannu dyddiadau'r
sesiynau a phob Pwyllgor, ar gyfer unrhyw Aelod sydd am gymryd rhan. Bydd hyn yn gyfle i Aelodau
glywed yn uniongyrchol gan ddinasyddion Cymru ynghylch lle y dylid blaenoriaethu gwariant.

Ymagysylitu & phobl ifanc

Mewn blynyddoedd blaenorol — er mwyn ategu ein gwaith ymgysylltu ymhellach — mae’r Pwyllgor
wedi cynnal gweithdy gydag Aelodau o'r Senedd leuenctid. Gan nad oes Sesiwn o'r Senedd leuenctid
yn mynd rhagddi hyn o bryd, bydd y Pwyllgor yn ymgysylltu a phobl ifanc mewn gwahanol ffyrdd.
Bydd cyfle i bobl ifanc roi eu barn yn Eisteddfod Genedlaethol yr Urdd, yr Eisteddfod Genedlaethol ac
yn y Sioe Frenhinol. At hynny, mae'r Tim Ymgysylltu & Dinasyddion yn trefnu gweithdy pwrpasol ar
gyfer pobl ifanc a bydd yn gwahodd cyfranogwyr o Goleg y Cymoedd, y Gwasanaeth Eiriolaeth
leuenctid Cenedlaethol a Voices from Care Cymru. Bydd y Tim Cyfathrebu Digidol hefyd yn defnyddio
offer cyfryngau cymdeithasol rhyngweithiol i annog ymgysylltiad, a byddem yn gwerthfawrogi pe
byddai Pwyllgorau eraill yn defnyddio eu presenoldeb cyfryngau cymdeithasol eu hunain i hyrwyddo'r
gwaith hwn.

Dadl y Pwyllgor Cyllid yn y Cyfarfod Llawn ar flaenoriaethau gwariant Llywodraeth Cymru

Fel y soniwyd uchod, mae’r Pwyllgor yn bwriadu cynnal dadl yn y Cyfarfod Llawn ddydd Mercher 17
Gorffennaf ar flaenoriaethau gwariant Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2025-26. Bydd canlyniadau ein
gwaith ymgysylltu yn llywio'r ddadl honno ac yn bwydo i mewn iddi, a dyma fydd y cyfle gorau i
ddylanwadu ar flaenoriaethau gwariant Llywodraeth Cymru cyn i'r Gyllideb Ddrafft gael chyhoeddi'n
hwyrach eleni. Fel ar bob adeg, dyma estyn croeso mawr i gyfraniad Cadeiryddion Pwyllgorau —yn
ogystal ag Aelodau eraill —yn rhan o'r ddadl hon, i sicrhau bod cynlluniau gwariant Llywodraeth
Cymru yn cael eu llywio gan safbwyntiau a blaenoriaethau Pwyllgorau'r Senedd.

Y dull o graffu ary gyllideb

Cyn hir, byddaf yn ysgrifennu at Gadeiryddion ynghylch dull y Pwyllgor o graffu ar y gyllideb, gan
gynnwys gwybodaeth am yr ymgynghoriad a'r amserlen unwaith y bydd y Trefnydd wedi hysbysu'r
Pwyllgor Busnes am ddyddiadau cyhoeddi'r Gyllideb Ddrafft cyn toriad yr haf.

Tudalen y pecyn 110

’f’// Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament



Os oes gennych gwestiynau am unrhyw agwedd ar broses y gyllideb ddrafft, mae croeso i chi gysylltu
a mi neu ag Owain Roberts, Clerc y Pwyllgor Cyllid, ar 0300 200 6388, seneddcyllid@senedd.cymru.

Yn gywir

7/

Peredur Owen Griffiths
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg.

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English.

Tudaleny pecyn 111

*?"// Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament



Papur 11 Senedd Cymru
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN

Enm D ddfwrlaeth SeneddDCC@senedd.cymru
\""{q!

senedd.cymru/SeneddDCC
dera r Cyfansoddiad Cs0m 260 bons

Y Pwyligor Deddfwriaeth, Senedd Cymru

Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN
SeneddlIC@senedd.wales

senedd.wales/SeneddLIC
0300 200 6565

Y Gwir Anrh Elin Jones AS
Y Llywydd a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Busnes

15 Mai 2024

Annwyl Lywydd,

Memoranda Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm Rhif 3 a Memorandwm Rhif 4)
Lliywodraeth Cymru ar y Bil Diwygio Cyfraith Lesddaliad a Rhydd-ddaliad

Mae'r Pwyllgor Busnes wedi cytuno ar derfyn amser o ddydd Gwener 31 Mai 2024 i'm Pwyllgor i, a'r
Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai gyflwyno adroddiad ar Femoranda Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol
(Memorandwm Rhif 3 a Memorandwm Rhif 4) Llywodraeth Cymru ar y Bil Diwygio Lesddaliad a
Rhydd-ddaliad.

Rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch i ofyn i'r terfyn amser gael ei ymestyn i ddydd Llun 3 Mehefin 2024, er mwyn
galluogi fy Mhwyllgor i ystyried adroddiad ar y memoranda, a chytuno arno, yn ei gyfarfod y
prynhawn hwnnw. Deallaf fod Llywodraeth Cymru yn bwriadu cynnal dadl ar gynnig cydsyniad
deddfwriaethol ar gyfer y Bil Diwygio Lesddaliad a Rhydd-ddaliad ddydd Mawrth 4 Mehefin. Felly, ni

fyddai'r estyniad byr hwn yn effeithio ar amserlennu busnes Llywodraeth Cymru.

Rwyf hefyd yn anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai.

way

Sarah Murphy
Cadeirydd

\ @ Senedd Cymru
/ Welsh Parliament

Yn gywir,

Tudalen y pecyn 112



Papur 12

Y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth,
Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad

Legislation, Justice and
Constitution Committee

Y Gwir Anrhydeddus Vaughan Gething AS
Y Prif Weinidog

Annwyl Vaughan,

Senedd Cymru
Bae Caerdydd, C e dd CF9914;/

Sen m
seneaa.cymra/SeneddbCc”

0300 200 6565

Welsh Parllament

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN
SeneddLIC@senedd.wales
senedd.wales/SeneddLIC

0300 200 6565

16 Mai 2024

Cytundeb rhwng y Deyrnas Unedig a Denmarc ar Gyfranogiad Gwladolion y Gwledydd Hyn mewn

Rhai Etholiadau os ydynt yn Preswylio yn Nhiriogaeth un o'r Lleill

Yn ei gyfarfod ar 7 Mai 2024, trafododd fy Mhwyllgor y cytundeb rhyngwladol a nodwyd uchod, a
osodwyd yn Senedd y DU ym mis Chwefror. Mae'n debygol y byddwch yn ymwybodol bod y

cytundeb yn sicrhau'r hawl i wladolion y DU yn Nenmarc a gwladolion Denmarc yn y DU sefyll a

phleidleisio mewn etholiadau lleol.

Nodwyd nad oes angen deddfwriaeth ddatganoledig i weithredu'r cytundeb yng Nghymru, gan fod

pob gwladolyn tramor sy'n preswylio'n gyfreithiol yn gallu sefyll a phleidleisio yn etholiadau lleol

Cymru.

yn dilyn casgliad cytundebau tebyg rhwng y DU a chenhedloedd eraill yr UE:

".. wrth lunio cytundebau sy’'n clymu pob rhan o'r DU i estyn y rhyddfraint i

wladolion gwledydd penodol eraill, mae Llywodraeth y DU, mewn gwirionedd, yn
cyfyngu ar gymhwysedd deddfwriaethol a gweithredol y sefydliadau datganoledig
yn y dyfodol, gan na fyddai modd i Gynulliad Cenedlaethol ac iddo safbwynt
gwleidyddol gwahanol ddeddfu i dynnu'r rhyddfraint oddi ar ddinasyddion o'r fath.

Yn achos y cytundebau hyn yn benodol, mae mecanwaith i'w gael ar gyfer

addasu'r cytundebau ar hawliau pleidleisio cilyddol, ac rydym wedi pwysleisio bod

angen proses ar gyfer gofyn am gael defnyddio’r mecanwaith hwn i ddileu Cymru

o gytundeb os bydd Cynulliad Cenedlaethol neu Lywodraeth Cymru arall yn y

dyfodol yn mabwysiadu safbwynt polisi sy'n wahanol i'n safowynt ni."

’7 Senedd Cymru Tudalen y pecyn 113

Welsh Parliament


https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s90904/CLA5-22-19%20-%20Papur%2028.pdf

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech gadarnhau erbyn dydd Mercher 29 Mai 2024
. a yw'r mater a godwyd gan y cyn-Brif Weinidog wedi cael ei ddatrys;

. os nad yw'r mater wedi'i ddatrys, a yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ystyried defnyddio unrhyw
ddulliau deddfwriaethol, megis cyflwyno diwygiadau i'r Bil Etholiadau a Chyrff Etholedig
(Cymru), i ofyn am ei benderfyniad;

. a yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ystyried defnyddio deddfwriaeth frys i wyrdroi unrhyw
gamau deddfwriaethol posibl gan Lywodraeth y DU i ddileu neu gyfyngu ar hawl
gwladolion o Aelod-wladwriaeth benodol o'r UE i sefyll a phleidleisio mewn unrhyw
etholiadau lleol yn y DU, er mwyn galluogi'r dinasyddion hynny i barhau i gael eu
rhyddfreinio mewn etholiadau datganoledig yng Nghymru.

Bydd fy Mhwyllgor yn gosod ei adroddiad ar y cytundeb maes o law.

Rwyf hefyd yn anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at y Liywydd, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a
Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai.

Yn gywir,

Sm/@

Sarah Murphy
Cadeirydd

Tudaleny pecyn 114

’?E// Senedd Cymru

Welsh Parliament



Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42 E |te m 7

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 115



E|tem 8 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 120



	Agenda
	2 Cyflenwad tai cymdeithasol – Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1
	Papur 1 - UK Collaborative Centre for Housing Evidence (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 2 - Yr Athro Edward Shepherd (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Cyflenwad tai cymdeithasol – Sesiwn dystiolaeth 2
	Papur 4 - Shelter Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Papurau i'w nodi
	4.1 Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio mewn perthynas ag Amrywiaeth mewn Llywodraeth Leol
	4.2 Llythyr gan Carolyn Thomas AS mewn perthynas â'r sector rhentu preifat
	4.3 Llythyr gan y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith mewn perthynas â chyflenwad tai cymdeithasol
	4.4 Llythyr gan Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Lywodraeth Leol, Tai a Chynllunio mewn perthynas â'r Bil Rhentwyr (Diwygio)
	4.5 Llythyr gan y Welsh Cladiators mewn perthynas â diogelwch adeiladau
	4.6 Llythyr gan y Pwyllgor Cyllid mewn perthynas â'r gyllideb ddrafft 2025-26 Llywodraeth Cymru
	4.7 Llythyr at y Llywydd gan y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad mewn perthynas â Memoranda Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm Rhif 3 a Memorandwm Rhif 4) ar y Bil Diwygio Cyfraith Lesddaliad a Rhydd-ddaliad
	4.8 Llythyr at y Prif Weinidog gan y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad mewn perthynas â'r cytundeb rhyngwladol rhwng y DU a Denmarc
	7 Y Bil Cyllid Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) - Trefn y broses ystyried yng Nghyfnod 2
	8 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol (Memorandwm Rhif 4) ar y Bil Diwygio Cyfraith Lesddaliadau a Rhydd-ddaliadau



